SupremeX

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE THREE AND TWELVE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED DECEMB ER 31,2012

The following management’s discussion and analysfsnancial condition and results of operations
(“MD&A"), dated March 11, 2013, of Supremex Inchét“Company”) should be read together with
the accompanying audited consolidated financiaesteents and related notes of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2012. These consolidatadciial statements of the Company have been
prepared by management in accordance with Inteomati Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
The fiscal year of the Company ends on DecembefB&. Company’s reporting currency is the
Canadian dollar. Per share amounts are calculatesthg the weighted average number of shares
outstanding for the three and twelve-month perieided December 31, 2012.

This MD&A contains forward-looking statements. Rleaee “Forward-Looking Statements” for a
discussion of the risks, uncertainties and asswmnptrelating to these statements. In addition to ou
results reported in accordance with IFRS, the MD&#ay contain other non-IFRS financial
measures. Terms by which non-IFRS financial measane identified include, but are not limited to,
“EBITDA” or other similar expressions. Non-IFRS dincial measures are used to provide
management and investors with additional measufggedormance. However, non-IFRS financial
measures do not have standard meanings prescrigetFRS and therefore may not be directly
comparable to similar measures used by other coiepaand should not be viewed as alternatives to
measures of financial performance prepared in adaoce with IFRS. See “Definition of EBITDA
and Non-IFRS Measures” and “Selected Consolidatewicial Information” for the reconciliation
of EBITDA to net earnings.

Conversion to a Corporation

On January 1, 2011 (the “Effective Date”), Supremiegome Fund (the “Fund”) completed its
conversion from an income trust structure to a aa@tion. On May 7, 2010, the unitholders of the
Fund approved the plan of arrangement (the “Arraregg”) pursuant to which the Fund will convert
from an income trust structure to a public corgorahamed Supremex Inc. The final order of the
Superior Court of Québec with respect to the Aresmgnt was obtained on May 10, 2010.

Under the Arrangement, unitholders of the Fund iveck for each unit of the Fund held, one
common share of Supremex.



The Arrangement has been accounted for as a cdgtiofuinterests of the Fund since Supremex
continues to operate the business of the Fund laeick twere no ownership changes. Under the
continuity of interests’ method of accounting, thensfer of the assets, liabilities and equity o t
Fund to Supremex is recorded at the net book vaduat the Effective Date of the transaction. As a
result, for accounting purposes, the transactioadsired to be accounted for as though the Company
was a continuation of the Fund but with its capiédlecting the exchange of Fund units for Supremex
common shares. Therefore, certain terms such ashsilder/unitholder, dividend/distribution and
share/unit may be used interchangeably throughositMD&A. For the periods reported up to the
Effective Date of the conversion, all payments ttholders were in the form of fund unit
distributions, and after that date all paymentshtareholders were in the form of dividends.

Any references to the Fund for periods after JantiaP011l shall mean Supremex Inc. as the
successor of the Fund. References to “company‘ar&sh “dividends” and “shareholders” means

“fund”, “unit”, “distributions” and “unitholders” ér transactions that occurred before the conversion
of the Fund to a corporation.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, the stated capitalhircommon shares was reduced to an amount of
$10 million as of the Effective Date.

Overview

Supremex is Canada’s leading manufacturer and nearké a broad range of stock and custom
envelopes and related products. Supremex emplgyexmately 550 people and is the only national
envelope manufacturer in Canada, with seven matwfag facilities across six provinces. This
national presence allows Supremex to meet the raaturing needs of large national customers, such
as large Canadian corporations, nationwide reseldard government bodies, as well as paper
merchants and solution and process providers.

Overall Performance

Revenue in the fourth quarter of 2012 amounted3® Zmillion compared with $36.7 million in the
fourth quarter of 2011, representing a decreas$3d million or 8.1%. In the fourth quarter, the
Canadian volume was down 9.5% and was spread ibhohtise accounts with bigger decline seen in
the forms resellers and large corporation markéte US revenue remained stable in the fourth
quarter.

EBITDA for the fourth quarter of 2012 was $7.2 moil compared with $7.4 million for the same
period in 2011, representing a decrease of $0lmilor 2.7%. EBITDA margin was 21.4%
compared with 21.3% in the fourth quarter of 200e margin improvement is mainly attributable to
the various cost reduction measures put in plackiding the conversion, for future service, of its
defined benefit pension plans into defined contidsuplans since July 1, 2012 partially offset hg t
impact of reduced volume.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, EBITDA bafestructuring expenses was $25.1 million or
19.0% of revenue compared with $29.5 million or5206.0f revenue in 2011. The decrease is mainly
attributable to the reduced volume sold genergllkead in all accounts partially offset by the cost
reduction measures put in place.



During the third quarter of 2012, several new iatlics have shown that the volume decrease in
North America’s envelope industry was higher thapeeted and that this decline was expected to
continue in the upcoming years. Therefore, the Gomphas had to revise its financial projections
plan and perform a goodwill impairment test as egit8mber 30, 2012. The Company has concluded
that the recoverable value, determined on the lmsiglue in use, was less than its carrying value
and a goodwill impairment charge of $28.9 millioaswecorded in the third quarter of 2012.

Key Factors Affecting the Business

The Company's operating results and financial diomdiare subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, and are affected by a number ofofacbutside management’s control. See “Risk
Factors” for a discussion of these risks.

Summary of Quarterly Results

Supremex’s revenue is subject to the seasonal E&lngrand mailing patterns of its customers. The
number of units sold by Supremex is generally highging fall and winter mainly due to the higher
number of mailings related to events including riéteirn to school, fund-raising, and the holiday and
tax seasons. The number of units sold by Supresgenerally lower during spring and summer in
anticipation of a slowdown in mailing activities blusinesses during the summer. As a result,
Supremex’s revenue and financial performance for single quarter may not be indicative of
revenue and financial performance which may be erpefor the full year. To maintain production
efficiencies, Supremex utilizes warehouse cap#slito inventory envelopes as required to counter
these predictable seasonal variations in salesnalu

The following table presents a summary of operatasylts of the Company on a quarterly basis from
January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2012.

(In thousands of dollars, except for per share antu

Dec. 31, Sept.30 June 30, Mar.31, Dec.31, Sept.30, June 30, Mar. 31,

2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenue 33,737 30,703 31,831 35,604 36,699 34,024 34,068 39,101
EBITDA ¢ 7,233 6,199 5,247 6,413 7,432 6,486 6,638 7,893
Earnings (loss) before income
taxe: 4,21: (25,661 1,91¢ 3,75¢ 3,96( 1,52( 2,037 3,99t
Net earnings (loss) 3,232 (26,039) 1,402 2,716 2,950 1,040 1,452 2,873

Net earnings (loss) per share  0.1111 (0.8895)  0.0478 0.0927 0.1007 0.0355 0.0496 0.0980

@ See “Definition of EBITDA.” EBITDA is not a recognéd measure under IFRS and does not have
a standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS. EBIT¥ not be comparable to similar measures
presented by other issuers.

Excluding the seasonal patterns of the businesente has decreased over the last eight quarters
mainly due to the decrease in volume sold in Cafialitaving softness in the envelope market and
the strength of the Canadian dollar. The third tprasf 2012 loss is attributable to the recordifig o
goodwill impairment of $28.9 million consideringethhigher than expected future decline in North
America’s envelope industry.



Selected Consolidated Financial Information
(In thousands of dollars, except for per share antu

Three-month periods Twelve-month periods

ended December 31, ended December 31,
201z 2011 201z 2011
$ $ $ $
Revenue 33,737 36,699 131,875 143,892
Operating expenses 22,153 24,069 89,996 96,209
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4,351 4,826 16,788 18,145
Restructuring expens&s — 372 — 1,089
EBITDA @ 7,233 7,432 25,091 28,449
Amortization of property, plant and equipment 916 853 3,499 4,398
Amortization of intangible assets 1,541 1,541 6,164 6,164
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment — 86 (18) 400
Impairment of goodwiill — — 28,862 —
Operating (loss) earnings 4,776 4,952 (13,416) 17,487
Financing charges 563 992 2,362 5,975
Earnings (loss) before income taxes 4,213 3,960 (15,778) 11,512
Income taxes expenses 981 1,010 2,912 3,197
Net (loss) earnings 3,232 2,950 (18,690) 8,315
Basic and diluted net (loss) earnings per share 0.1111 0.1007 (0.6393) 0.2838
Dividend declared per share 0.0300 0.0300 0.1200 0.0900
Total assets 129,565 166,841 129,565 166,841
Secured credit facilities 50,000 55,000 50,000 55,000

@ Restructuring expenses are mainly related to tsérueturing and improvement initiatives to
reduce the Company’s operating costs.

@ see “Definition of EBITDA.”
Results of Operations

Three-month period ended December 31, 2012 compared with three-month period ended
December 31, 2011

Revenue

Revenue for the three-month period ended Decenmhe2®.2 amounted to $33.7 million compared
with $36.7 million for the three-month period end2ecember 31, 2011, a decrease of $3.0 million or
8.1%. The decrease in revenue is mainly attribatebthe lower number of units sold in Canada.

Revenue in Canada decreased by $3.0 million or 8f88m $33.9 million to $30.9 million, and
revenue in the United States remained stable 8tr§ilion.

The decrease in revenue in Canada was driven by% @ecrease in the number of units sold
partially offset by a 0.8% increase in the averaging price. The decrease in the number of units
sold was spread in most of the accounts with bigipmline seen in the forms resellers and large
corporations markets.



Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the three-month period ebBidsgmber 31, 2012 amounted to $22.2 million
compared with $24.1 million for the same period2011, a decrease of $1.9 million or 8.0%. The
impact of the reduced volume and the cost reduati@asures put in place mainly explains the
decrease in operating expenses.

Gross profit decreased in 2012 compared with 2Th&. margin erosion is mainly attributable to the
reduced volume offset by various cost reductionsuess put in place including the conversion, for
future service, of its defined benefit plans ingdided contribution plans.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses tatafi4.4 million for the three-month period ended
December 31, 2012 compared with $4.8 million foe tekame period in 2011, a decrease of
$0.4 million or 9.9%. The decrease is mainly atitéible to decreased compensation.

EBITDA

As a result of the changes described above, EBITi2& $7.2 million for the three-month period
ended December 31, 2012 compared with $7.4 milignthe same period in 2011, a decrease of
$0.2 million or 2.7%.

Amortization

Aggregate amortization expense for the three-mg@ettiod ended December 31, 2012 amounted to
$2.5 million compared with $2.4 million for the cparable period in 2011 representing an increase
of $0.1 million or 2.7%, related to the 2012 acdiges of property, plant and equipment.

Financing charges

Financing charges for the three-month period eridedember 31, 2012 amounted to $0.6 million
compared with $1.0 million for the same period G2, representing a decrease of $0.4 million or
43.3%, resulting from the lower amortization of@leéd financing costs following the credit facai
renewal, the impact of the reduced level of deht] the higher gain on valuation of derivative
financial instrument.

Earnings before income taxes

Due to the changes in revenue and expenses dekdrdrein, the earnings before income taxes
totalled $4.2 million for the three-month period ded December 31, 2012 compared with
$4.0 million for the same period in 2011, an inseeaf $0.2 million or 6.4%.

Provision for income taxes

During the three-month period ended December 312 2the provision for income taxes remained
stable at $1.0 million.



Net earnings

As a result of the changes described above, neinggramounted to $3.2 million for the three-month
period ended December 31, 2012 compared with $Blidmfor the same period in 2011, an increase
of $0.2 million or 9.5%.

Other comprehensive loss

The higher than expected return on assets of thep@oy’'s defined benefit pension plan partially
offset by the decrease of the discount rate forusct plan benefit obligation has generated net
actuarial gain of $0.7 million. These variationspemted the Company’s other comprehensive loss
and deficit.

Twelve-month period ended December 31, 2012 compared with twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011

Revenue

Revenue for the twelve-month period ended DecerdbeP012 amounted to $131.9 million
compared with $143.9 million for the twelve-montéripd ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of
$12.0 million or 8.4%. The decrease in revenue aniy attributable to the lower number of units
sold in Canada.

Revenue in Canada decreased by $12.0 million &6 9fdom $132.3 million to $120.3 million, and
revenue in the United States remained stable a6$tillion.

The decrease in revenue in Canada was mainly doyen9.4% decrease in the number of units sold
offset by a 0.4% increase in average selling pridee decrease in the number of units sold was
generally spread in all accounts with bigger deckeen in form resellers, large corporations and
public markets.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses for the twelve-month period émtEcember 31, 2012 amounted to $90.0 million
compared with $96.2 million for the same period201L1, a decrease of $6.2 million or 6.5%. The
impact of the reduced volume and the cost reduati@asures put in place mainly explains the
decrease in operating expenses.

Gross profit decreased in 2012 compared with 20h&. margin erosion is attributable to the reduced
volume and increase of raw material costs partiaffget by various cost reduction measures put in
place, including the conversion, for future seryvicd its defined benefit plans into defined
contribution plans effective July 1, 2012.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses a1 6.8 million for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012 compared with $18.1 million fbe tsame period in 2011, a decrease of
$1.3 million or 7.5%. The decrease was mainly laitable to decreased compensation and bad debt
expenses.



EBITDA

As a result of the changes described above, EBIW24 $25.1 million for the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2012 compared with $28.4 mifilorthe same period in 2011, a decrease of
$3.3 million or 11.8%.

Amortization

Aggregate amortization expense for the twelve-mettiod ended December 31, 2012 amounted to
$9.7 million compared with $10.6 million for theraparable period in 2011 representing a decrease
of $0.9 million or 8.5%. The decrease is mainlatedl to the review of the useful lives of some
manufacturing equipment which have been extendex $Dctober 1, 2011.

Impairment of goodwill

An impairment of goodwill charge has been recordadthe twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012 in the amount of $28.9 milliomsidering the higher than expected future
decline in North America’s envelope industry.

Financing charges

Financing charges for the twelve-month period endedember 31, 2012 amounted to $2.4 million
compared with $6.0 million for the same period G2, representing a decrease of $3.6 million or
60.5%, resulting from the gain on valuation of dative financial instruments in 2012 of $0.5 mitlio
as compared to a loss on valuation of derivatimarfcial instruments in 2011 of $1.8 million, the
lower amortization of deferred financing costsdaling the credit facilities renewal and the impaict
the reduced level of debt.

(Loss) earnings before income taxes

Due to the changes in revenue and expenses daktrdvein, the loss before income taxes totalled
$15.8 million for the twelve-month period ended Beber 31, 2012 compared with earnings before
income taxes of $11.5 million for the same perin@011.

Provision for income taxes

During the twelve-month period ended December 8122 the Company recorded a provision for
income taxes of $2.9 million compared with $3.2lioil for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2011, a decrease of $0.3 million @%8.The decrease is mainly attributable to lower
earnings before the portion of non-deductible gabdrvpairment charge.

Net (loss) earnings
As a result of the changes described above, netdomunted to $18.7 million for the twelve-month

period ended December 31, 2012 compared with metrgs of $8.3 million for the same period in
2011.



Other comprehensive loss

The decrease of the discount rate for accrued bestwigations of the Company's defined benefit
pension plans partially offset by the higher thapeeted return on plan assets have generated net
actuarial losses of $4.1 million. These variatiompacted the Company’'s other comprehensive loss
and deficit.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compas, in the normal course of business,
received services in an amount of $117,891 (20834,674) from a major shareholder, Clarke Inc.,
and its subsidiaries.

Segmented Information

The Company currently operates in one businessemgtne manufacture and sale of envelopes. The
Company’'s non-current assets amounted to $95.@milh Canada and $0.8 million in the United
States as at December 31,2012 as compared to 9%h80on and $1.0 milion as at
December 31, 2011, respectively.

In Canada, the Company’s revenue amounted to $8illien and $120.3 million for the three and
twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2012 cardpaith $33.9 million and $132.3 million for
the same periods in 2011, representing a decrésg0million or 8.8% and $12.0 million or 9.1%,
respectively. In the United States, the Companggenue remained stable at $2.8 million and
$11.6 million for the three and twelve-month pes@hded December 31, 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Operating activities

Cash of $13.7 million was generated from operagictivities during the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012 compared with $19.0 million dythime same period of 2011. The decrease in net
cash flows from operating activities is primarilyedto a decrease in net change in non-cash working
capital balances and by lower earnings before msh-items. The higher non-cash working capital
level as at December 31, 2012 as compared to Dexre®ih 2011, resulted mainly from the lower
annual incentive programs accruals and the incaxestpayable, partially offset by the decrease of
accounts receivable.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities of $2.2 millioruridg the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2012 was mainly related to the adoprisof property, plant and equipment. In the
prior-year period, cash of $2.2 million was genedaby the sale of the Markham facility partially
offset by acquisition of property, plant and equgomn

Financing activities

In the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2@428h of $9.0 million was used in financing
activities for the repayment of the credit faciigiand the payment of dividends. Similarly, in prio
year period, $18.7 million was used in financingidites for repayments on the credit facilities,
payment of dividends and the payment of distrimgion Fund units.



Liquidity and capital resources summary

Our ability to generate cash flows from operatiooambined with our availability under our existing
credit facilities are expected to provide sufficiiquidity to meet anticipated needs for existand
future projects.

Contractual Obligations

The following chart outlines the Company’s contuattobligations as at December 31, 2012.

(in thousands of dollars)
Payments due by fiscal year

Total 2013 2014 2015 and

thereafter

Secured credit faciliti¢ 50,000,00 5,000,00¢ 5,000,001 40,000,00
Interest on secured credit facilit 5,301,96. 1,984,83. 1,851,78: 1,465,33:
Derivative financial liabilit 700,435  342,00( 252,00( 106,43!
Operating leas: 7,377,099 1,719,411 1,487,090 4,170,58
Total 63,379,495 9,046,25; 8,590,88 45,742,35

Financing

The Company’s credit facilities consist of a $20liom revolving facility, a $45 million term credit
facility ($50 million as at December 31, 2011) amdb25 million acquisition/capital expenditures
facility (see “Recent Events”). As at December&112, Supremex had drawn $5 million on the
revolving credit facility and $45 million on therie credit facility.

The revolving credit facility may be used to refica existing credit facilities, finance working
capital requirements and for other general corpopatrposes. The acquisition/capital expenditures
facility may be used to finance permitted acquisisi and permitted capital expenditures. The
revolving and term credit facilities mature on Noleer 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital expenditures
credit facility matures on November 4, 2013 witle thption to extend up to November 4, 2015. The
term credit facility is repayable in quarterly mipal instalments of $1,250,000. In addition, 5086 o
the annual excess cash flow, as defined in thatagoeement, will be applied against the termitred
facility if the debt to EBITDA ratio rises above5p, or 25% if the debt to EBITDA ratio falls
between 2.50 and 2.00. No cash flow sweep arenestjifithe debt to EBITDA ratio falls below 2.00
which was the case in 2012.

The facilities bear interest at a floating ratedahen the Canadian prime rate or bankers’ acceptanc
rate, plus an applicable margin on those ratesatABecember 31, 2012, the interest rate on the
revolving and term credit facilities was 3.54 %.eT@ompany was in compliance with the covenants
of its credit facilities as at December 31, 2012.

As at January 14, 2011, Supremex Inc. enteredaintimterest rate swap agreement for an amount of
$30 million at a fixed rate of 2.84% until Januady, 2016, excluding all applicable margins.

The credit facilities are collateralized by a hypat and security interests covering all present and
future assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Capitalization

As at March 11, 2013, the Company had 28,960,8&¥Wuan shares outstanding.



Pursuant to the normal course issuer bid, whiclabegmn December 5, 2011, the Company could have
purchased for cancellation up to 1,500,000 sharg$ December 4, 2012. During the three and
twelve month periods ended December 31, 2012, ttmp@ny purchased 260,900 and 336,900 shares
for cancellation, respectively, at a price rangfrgm $1.05 to $1.62 per common share and thus
completed its normal course issuer bid.

Financial Instruments
Interest rate and foreign exchange risk

The Company's credit facilities bear interest aloating rate which give rise to the risk that its
earnings and cash flows may be adversely impactediuztuations in interest rates. As at
January 14, 2011, Supremex Inc. entered into arest rate swap agreement for an amount of
$30 million at a fixed rate of 2.84% until Januady, 2016, excluding the applicable margin.

The Company operates in Canada and the UnitedsStatéch gives rise to a risk that its earnings

and cash flows may be adversely impacted by fldicns in the exchange rate between the US and
Canadian dollar. A portion of Supremex’s revenueamed in US dollars while a large portion of its

expenses, including most of its paper and other maaterials costs as well as certain capital

expenditures, are incurred in US dollars. Supremlso derives a portion of its revenue from

Canadian dollar sales to certain customers for whimrselling price is sensitive to US competition.

Net exposure to the US dollar decreased in 2012 tduewer US dollar purchases (see “Risk

Factors”). Cash, accounts receivable and accoumtabte and accrued liabilities include balances
denominated in US dollars at the end of the year.

Fair value

The fair value of the Company’s financial instrurseis indicated in note 20 to the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements for #er ynded December 31, 2012.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has no other off-balance sheet arragnfsm
Financial Position Highlights

(In thousands of dollars except for ratio)
December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

$ $

Working capite 10,215 5,82¢
Total asse 129,56! 166,84
Total secured credit facilitie 49,356 54,17
Equity 37,907 64,66

Supremex pays quarterly dividends to shareholdetbeadiscretion of the Board of Directors. A
dividend of $869,876 or $0.03 per share was detlanel paid in the fourth quarter of 2012.
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Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

In accordance with National Instrument 52-10€eftification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and
Interim Filings the Company has filed certifications signed by Bresident and Chief Executive
Officer, acting also as Chief Financial Officer @); that, among other things, report on the design
and effectiveness of disclosure controls and prnaes] and the design and effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting.

Management has designed disclosure controls armckeguoes to provide reasonable assurance that
material information relating to the Company is eaown to the President and Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, particdiaduring the period in which annual filings are
being prepared. The President and Chief Executiffiedd, acting also as Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), evaluated the effectiveness of the Compadisslosure controls and procedures and
concluded, based on its evaluation, that suchatiseé controls and procedures were effective as of
December 31, 2012.

Management has also designed internal control dwvemcial reporting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdowing and the preparation of financial statemémts
external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Theidimesand Chief Executive Officer, acting also as
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveme$ the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting and concluded, based on its evaluatiwat, $uch internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2012. In makiagitaluation, the President and Chief Executive
Officer, also acting as Chief Financial Officer,edsthe criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$@@SO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework.

Finally, there has been no change in the Companteésnal control over financial reporting during
the year ended December 31, 2012 that materiafgctad, or is likely to materially affect, the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting

Significant accounting policies and estimates

The Company prepares its financial statements ifiocmity with IFRS, which requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions thaagement believes are reasonable based upon
the information available. These estimates, judgmand assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of continggegdets and liabilities at the date of the findncia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuexqahses during the reporting period. Significant
areas requiring the use of management estimategerab implied fair value of goodwill,
determination of fair value of assets acquired #alilities assumed in business combinations,
determination of pension and other employee beneaifieful life of certain assets for amortization
and evaluation of net recoverable amount, incommestand determination of fair value of financial
instruments. Management bases its estimates aribatexperience and other assumptions, which it
believes are reasonable under the circumstancepagément also assesses its estimates on an
ongoing basis. The effect on the financial statdmehchanges in such estimates in future periods
could be material and would be accounted for inpérod a change occurs.

The significant accounting policies of the Compang described in note 2 to the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year éfdlscember 31, 2012.

The policies the Company believes are most critwalssist in fully understanding and evaluatisg it
reported results include the following:
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I ntangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill arise out of busiresnbinations for which the Company has applied
the purchase method of accounting. The purchaskamenvolves the allocation of the cost of an
acquisition to the underlying net assets acquiget on their respective estimated fair value.a&s p
of this allocation process, the Company must idgm@nd attribute values and estimated lives to the
intangible assets acquired. These determinatiomshvia significant estimates and assumptions
regarding cash flow projections, economic risk aeighted average cost of capital.

These estimates and assumptions determine the armabiocated to other identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill as well as the amortizatiomogeior identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives. If future events or results differ adversilym these estimates and assumptions, the Company
could record increased amortization or impairmésatrges in the future.

Although the Company usually performed its goodiwipairment test annually as at December 31,
during the third quarter of 2012, the Company heniified indications that its goodwill may be
impaired. Consequently, as at September 30, 20&2Cbmpany performed a goodwill impairment
test using the discounted cash flows method baped management’s best estimates which reflect
the Company’s planned course of action in lightnafrket conditions. The Company concluded that
the recoverable value, determined on the basislfevin use, was less than its carrying value and
recorded a goodwill impairment charge in the tlojoérter of 2012.

As at December 31, 2012, the Company has reviewedjgodwill impairment test and as no
assumptions significantly changed since SeptembgeR@12, the Company concluded that there was
no additional impairment needed in the carrying anm@f its goodwill.

Valuation technique

The Company uses the discounted cash flows (“D@k)hod to determine the value in use of its
cash-generating unit and has not made any chawg#dsetvaluation methodology used to assess
goodwill impairment since the last annual impairttest.

Significant assumptions

The income approach is predicated upon the valutheffuture cash flows that a business will
generate going forward. The DCF method which wasduss at September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2012 involves projecting cash flowsl @onverting them into a present value
equivalent through discounting. The discountingcess uses a rate of return that is commensurate
with the risk associated with the business or aaget the time value of money. This approach
requires assumptions about revenue growth or deddites, operating margins, tax rate and discount
rate.

Growth or decline of revenue
The assumptions used were based on the Compangmah budget. The Company projected
revenue, operating margins and cash flows for agef four years that reflect lower demand and

applied a perpetual long-term decline rate for peeiod thereafter. In arriving at its forecastg th
Company considered past experience, economic tesndell as industry and market trends.
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Discount rate

The Company assumed a pre-tax discount rate talatdcthe present value of its projected cash
flows. The discount rate represented a weightedageecost of capital (“WACC") for comparable
companies operating in a similar industry. The WAISGn estimate of the overall required rate of
return on an investment for both debt and equityens and serves as the basis for developing an
appropriate discount rate. Determination of the V@A@quires separate analysis of the cost of equity
and debt, and considers a risk premium based @ssessment of risks related to the projected cash
flows.

The key assumptions used in performing the impaitrtesst were as follows:

Assumptions
Pre-tax discount ra 156%
Tax ratt 258%
Perpetuadecline rate 3.0%

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that an increase of 1% of thegx discount rate or an increase of 1% of the
perpetual decline rate, in isolation, would deceedise recoverable amount by approximately
$4.4 million.

Employee future benefits

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans prayigension and other post-employment benefits
to covered employees. The determination of expandeobligations associated with employee future
benefits requires the use of assumptions such eexpected return on assets available to fund
pension obligations, the discount rate to measbtigations, the expected mortality, the expected
retirement age, the expected rate of future congtimsincrease and the expected healthcare cost
trend rate. Because the determination of the codtabligations associated with employee future
benefits requires the use of various assumptidresetis measurement uncertainty inherent in the
actuarial valuation. Actual results will differ froestimated results which are based on assumptions.

Significant assumptions:

Discount rate for accrued benefit obligation 3.90%
Discount rate for net pension cost 4.50%
Expected return on plan assets 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25%

Discount rate

As at December 31, 2012, we used fiwra Capital’'s CIA Method Accounting Discount R&erve
which follows the methodology suggested in the Gducation Note occounting Discount Rate
Assumption for Pension and Post-employment Bepldfits For the Company, a 0.25% increase or
decrease in the discount rate would have decreais@ttreased the defined benefit obligation by
approximately $3.8 million as at December 31, 2012.
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Expected rate or return

The expected rate of return on assets is basedhemxpected rate of return on each asset class
category using a stochastic projecting tool thaiegates multiple expected-return scenarios ovey lon
periods of time for different asset classes. Exgubétes payable by the plan are deducted from this
expected rate of return. For the Company, a 0.2&%¥ease or decrease in the expected rate of return
would have decreased or increased pension expgreggoboximately $0.2 million for the year 2012.

Rate of compensation
Future salary increases are based on expectee faflation rates.
Medical cost trend

The medical cost trend is based on our actuaridicakclaims experience and future projections of
medical costs. The average medical cost trendusdd was 6.7% for 2012, which is expected to
decline to 2.5% in 2024. A one-percentage-poirgnge in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have no material impact.

I ncome taxes

The Company computes an income tax provision irh edcthe jurisdictions in which it operates.
However, the actual amount of the income tax expdesomes final only upon filing and acceptance
of the tax return by the relevant authorities, whtake place subsequent to the issuance of the
financial statements. Additionally, estimation oE@me taxes includes evaluating the recoverability
of deferred tax assets based on an assessmeaetatfitity to use the underlying future tax deduwsio
against future taxable income before they expife dssessment is based upon existing tax laws and
estimates of future taxable income. To the extstitmates differ from the final tax return, earnings
would be affected in a subsequent period.

The Company is subject to taxation in numeroussglictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatiis uncertain during the normal course of
business. The Company maintains provisions for mi@icetax positions that it believes appropriately
reflect its risk with respect to tax matters undetive discussion, audit, dispute or appeal with ta
authorities, or which are otherwise considerednimlive uncertainty. These provisions are made
using the best estimate of the amount expectecktpaid based on a qualitative assessment of all
relevant factors. The Company reviews the adeqoédlyese provisions at the end of the reporting
period. However, it is possible that at some futlaée an additional liability could result from @sd

by taxing authorities. Where the final outcome loégse tax-related matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such diffeesywill affect the tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

The Company’s 2012 effective tax rate was 26.1%anfiings before income tax. A 1% increase in
the effective tax rate would have increased th&208dome tax expense by approximately $111,000.
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I mpairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets of the Company, including propgrtant and equipment, are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying value of the assets may not be
fully recoverable. Impairment is assessed whendibeounted expected future cash flows derived
from an asset are less than its carrying amourgaimment losses are recognized for the amount by
which the carrying value of an asset exceeds itsvidue. The Company periodically reviews the
estimated useful lives of all long-lived assets endses them if necessary.

New Accounting Policies
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

In October 2010, the International Accounting Stadd Board (“IASB”) issued IFRS @inancial
Instruments(“IFRS 9”). IFRS 9, which replaces IAS 3&jnancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement establishes principles for the financial repatiof financial assets and financial
liabilities that will present relevant and usefafdarmation to users of financial statements foiirthe
assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertafratg entity’s future cash flows.

IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10pnsolidated Financial Statement8FRS 107). IFRS 10,
which replaces SIC-1Zonsolidation — Special Purpose Entitiasd part of IAS 27Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statemenpsovides additional guidance regarding the conoégontrol as
the determining factor in whether an entity shobtl included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1Bjsclosure of Interests in Other EntitigSIFRS 127).
IFRS 12 is a new and comprehensive standard otogise requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, akgges, special purpose vehicles and other off loalan
sheet vehicles.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS Eair Value Measuremer{tIFRS 13”). IFRS 13 will improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providingecize definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirésrfen use across IFRS.

IAS1, Financial Statement Presentation

In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAErancial Statement PresentatigtiAS 17).
This amendment to IAS 1 will improve the preseptatof the components of other comprehensive
income.

IAS 19, Employee Benefits

In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IASH@ployee Benefit{"IAS 19”). This
amendment to IAS 19 will improve the recognitiordatisclosure requirements for defined benefits
plans.

These new standards are effective for the Compaimggsim and annual consolidated financial

statements commencing January 1, 2013. Howevddeaember 2011, the IASB has postponed the
mandatory application of IFRS Binancial Instrumentgpo January 1, 2015.
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IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation

In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to3Financial Instruments: Presentation
(“IAS 32") clarifying the requirements for offsetty financial assets and liabilities. The amendments
shall be applied to annual periods beginning orafter January 12014. The IASB also issued
amendments to IFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosur€‘IFRS 7”) improving disclosure on
offsetting of financial assets and liabilities. reamendments shall be applied to annual andrimteri
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

The Company is assessing the impact of these reswlatds on its consolidated financial statements.
Recent Events

On February 20, 2013, the Board of Directors hataded a quarterly dividend of $0.03 per common
share, payable on March 15, 2013 to shareholdeecofd at the close of business on March 4, 2013.

As permitted by the credit agreement, the Companquested on February 21, 2013 the cancellation
of the $25 million acquisition/capital expendituredit facility effective February 22, 2013. No
amount was drawn on this credit facility at thatieda

Risk Factors

The results of operations, business prospects iaaddal condition of Supremex are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, and are affebyed number of factors outside the control of
Supremex’s management.

Decline in Envelope Consumption

Supremex’s envelope manufacturing business is yigapendent upon the demand for envelopes
sent through the mail. Supremex may compete witklyost substitutes, which can impact demand for

its products. Usage of the Internet and other mlaiit media continues to grow. Consumers use these
media to purchase goods and services, and for pthgoses such as paying utility and credit card

bills. Advertisers use the Internet and electramiedia for targeted campaigns directed at specific
electronic user groups. Large and small businesseselectronic media to conduct business, send
invoices and collect bills. The demand for envetopad other printed materials for transactional

purposes is expected to continue to decline irfiuthee.

The North American envelope manufacturing and mgilindustries are expected to continue to
decline in the foreseeable future, due to a gemermressive decline in the use of traditional pape
based products. The business depends on transdatiaii and direct mail activities. Transactional
mail volumes are thought to have declined in ths few years due in part to the increasing use of
non-traditional means of communication and infoiprattransfer, such as facsimile machines,
electronic mail and the Internet. While managenttieves that the significant decline experienced
in the direct mail volume in the last few years wekated to the economic conditions, we have no
choice but to admit that many companies have retltleeir marketing spend as well as redirected
some of their overall marketing expenditures tceptimedia channels. There is no assurance that the
direct mail industry will regain. As a result, teetan be no assurance that Supremex will be able to
grow or even maintain historical sales levels.

To reduce this risk, the Company continually ssite improve operational efficiency and develop
new products such as the RFID card protector.
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Postal Services

Because the majority of envelopes consumed in Gaaad the United States are mailed, any strike
or other work stoppage by unionized postal workeosild result in a temporary suspension of the
mail activities of most of Supremex’s customers amilild have a material adverse effect on
Supremex. In the summer of 2011, there was a wmppage at Canada Post that lasted about 3
weeks. During that period, envelope shipmentsusiamers were slightly affected and some direct
mail orders were cancelled. Adoption of e-billiatpo increased during that period. Many large
corporations used the work stoppage at Canadat®qgsiomote the advantages of e-billing. It is
impossible to quantify the impact of the work stage due to its long-term potential effect.

In addition, postal rates are a significant fa@ffecting envelope usage and any increases inlposta
rates, relative to changes in the cost of altevealelivery means or advertising media, could tdsul
reductions in the volume of mail sent. No assurata® be provided that future increases in postal
rates will not have a negative effect on the l@fehail sent or the volume of envelopes purchased.

Finally, there has been growing talk of “do-not-th&gislation in the US with respect to the direct
marketing industry. “Do-not-mail” legislation isstituted at the state level. In 2008, such leghat
was introduced but not passed in some states.bHEirRg said, if such legislation were to be pasied,
would have a negative impact on the Company’s salksne.

Relation with customers

Supremex typically does not enter into long-termitten agreements with customers. As a result,
there is a risk that customers may, without noticepenalty, terminate their relationship with
Supremex at any time. In addition, even if cust@ndecide to continue their relationship with
Supremex, there can be no guarantee that theywitlhase the same amount as in the past, or that
purchases will be on similar terms. Supremex’'sarusr base is solidly diversified with no single
account representing more than 10% of sales, tbdsicimg dependence on any given single
customer.

Competition

Despite Supremex’s leading market position in Canagw entrants into the Canadian envelope
market may have an impact on sales and marginssfrargthening of the Canadian dollar against
the US dollar created an incentive for US-basedpatitors to increase market penetration in Canada
in the last five years. The large US envelope megtufers are using their excess capacity to
penetrate the Canadian envelope market. As lonigeadS market stays relatively soft, there will be
pricing pressure in the Canadian market. In thieofa2008, the Canadian dollar weakened by almost
25% easing the pressure on the Canadian envelog@tm&ince then, the dollar has recovered most
of its losses and has been trading close to paity the US dollar, creating pressure on pricing in
Canada. However, the costs of freight, coupled thiéhefficiency of delivery are barriers to semii
any significant customer volume from a distance.

In the current market, the Canadian envelope matwis are more aggressive on pricing in order to
generate new sales to replace their lost saleenGive Company’s large market share in Canada,
most of the gains of our smaller competitors in &knare made in Supremex’s accounts.

Nonetheless, to mitigate this risk, the Companytiooes to focus on continuous improvement

programs, cost reduction initiatives and developnoéwvalue-added services and products around its
core businesses, and still believes in the valukaefng local service and representation in all the
major Canadian markets.
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Economic Cycles

A significant risk that Supremex faces and overalitit has no control is related to economic cycles.
In a soft economy, the market most affected at &upk is its direct mail market. There is a direct
correlation between growth/decline in the gross estio product and direct mail volume. Because of
the economic conditions faced recently, we haveggpced a significant direct mail volume decline.
For Supremex, such impact is partially mitigateddaect mail represents approximately 20% of
Supremex’s total annual volume. For transactionail,nwhich represents about 50% of Supremex’s
annual volume, economic cycles had a lesser impact on direct mail since businesses must still
mail out bills to their customers, and the onlinking penetration is fairly low in this segmentof~
many years, transactional volume has been declining

Employee future benefits

The Company maintains three registered definedfthigramsion plans substantially covering all of its

employees. Two of these plans are hybrid and imdwddefined contribution component. In the third
quarter of 2012, the Company converted, for futseevices, its defined benefit pension plans into
defined contributions plans. In the past, the Camgplaas also provided post-retirement and post-
employment benefits, including health care, dentak and life insurance, to a limited number of
employees.

As at December 31, 2012, we estimated the solvdefigit at $20.6 million.

The level of the contributions may vary dependimgpension fund performance and the discount
rate, which could affect the financial conditionSiipremex.

Environment

The Company operates in an industry which useselapgantities of paper in its day-to-day

operations. With society’s mounting concern over pinotection of the environment and sustainable
development, Supremex’s products and services aderupressure to be more environmentally
friendly. For instance, the growing concern oveg #mvironment could change the consumption
habits of consumers and new regulations could fdiee Company to use more expensive
environmentally friendly materials in its productiprocess. To mitigate this risk, the Company tries
to be at the forefront of its industry in termscoimmitment to the environment and, in collaboration
with its suppliers, seeks on an ongoing basis duge its impact on the environment. Supremex is
also a leader in the Canadian envelope marketemthrketing of environmental friendly products,

such as 100% recycled paper.

Exchange Rate

A portion of Supremex’s revenue is earned in USadslwhile a large portion of its expenses,
including most of its paper and other raw mater@asts as well as certain capital expenditures are
incurred in US dollars. Supremex also derives adgigroiof its revenue from Canadian dollar sales to
certain customers for whom selling price is sewsito US competition.

Net exposure to the US dollar has decreased in 20&2to lower US dollar purchases. Revenue

generated in the United States represented 8.8%nslidated revenue in fiscal 2012, up from 8.1%
in fiscal 2011.
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Availability of Capital

In 2011, the Company completed the refinancingsofiiedit facilities totalling $95 million consist

of a $20 million revolving facility, a $50 millionterm credit facilty and a $25 million
acquisition/capital expenditures facility. The rkwog and term credit facilities mature on
November 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital expemegifacility matures on November 4, 2013 with
the option to extend up to November 4, 2015 (sesc&Rt Events”). Although the Company carried
out this refinancing successfully, there is no gagge that additional funds will be available ie th
future, and if they are, that they will be provideda timeframe and under conditions acceptable to
the Company.

Raw Material Price Increases

The primary raw materials the Company uses arerpapedow material, glue and ink. Fluctuations
in raw material and energy prices affect our openat

First, the current tightening in the paper markiele to paper mill closures, has resulted in a dsere

in the supply of paper which could in turn leadp@per price increases. While paper costs were
generally a pass through in the past, an increagthe price of paper can negatively affect our
operations if it changes the purchasing habitswfaustomers, especially in the current economic
conditions. Moreover, an increase in the price ajjgr negatively affects Supremex’s profitability if
the increases cannot be passed on to the custdmaenitigate this risk, the Company does not rely on
any one supplier and is generally disciplined isgi@gy on any raw material increases to its custemer

Fluctuations in the price of oil, a core ingredienthe composition of window material, glue and in
have a direct impact on their price. An increaséhin price of oil can have a negative effect on our
operations if it changes the purchasing habitaofcastomers.

Credit

The Company is exposed to credit risk with respedrade receivables. To mitigate this risk, the
Company analyzes and reviews the financial hedlfts @urrent customers on an ongoing basis. A
specific credit limit is established for each custn and reviewed periodically by the Company.
Supremex is protected against any concentratiocrexfit risk through its clientele and geographic
diversity. No single customer accounts for morenti®% of consolidated accounts receivable.
Supremex’s customer base is solidly diversified emusists mainly of large national customers, such
as large Canadian corporations, nationwide resellerd governmental bodies, as well as paper
merchants and solution and process providers. titiatty, the level of bad debt has been low given
the nature of the customers. As at December 32,26 maximum credit risk exposure for
receivables corresponds to their carrying value.

Interest Rate

The Company is exposed to market risks relatedtarést rate fluctuations. On January 14, 2011, a
$30 million interest swap was contracted. The Camgjsapolicy is to fix a portion of its long-term
debt. Under this swap, the fixed-rate portion repnéed 43% at the time it was entered into. Flgatin
rate debt bears interest rates based on bankeyspt@ances rate. This swap converts the variable
interest rate, based on bankers’ acceptance Katan taverage fixed interest rate of 2.84% until
January 14, 2016, excluding an applicable margim¢hvis 225 basis points as at December 31, 2012.

To mitigate this risk, the Company tries to maintaigood balance of fixed versus floating rate .debt
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Litigation

Supremex, like other manufacturing and sales orgdions, is subject to potential liabilities
connected with its business operations, includingpeases associated with product defects,
performance, reliability or delivery delays. Supeenis from time to time threatened with, or named
as a defendant in, legal proceedings, includingslats based on product liability, personal injury,
breach of contract and lost profits or other consetjal damages claims, in the ordinary course of
conducting its business. A significant judgmentiagiaSupremex or the imposition of a significant
fine or penalty, as a result of a finding that Supex failed to comply with laws or regulations, or
being named as a defendant on multiple claims cbaileg a material adverse effect on Supremex’s
business, financial condition, results of operatiand cash available for distributions.

Forward-Looking Statements

This MD&A contains “forward-looking statements” Wwih the meaning of applicable Canadian
securities laws, including (but not limited to) tetaents about the EBITDA projection, future
performance of Supremex and similar statementseraimg anticipated future results, circumstances,
performance or expectations. A statement is forv@oling when it uses what Supremex knows and
expects today to make a statement about the fufmmsvard-looking statements may include words
such as anticipate, assumption, believe, coulde@xpgoal, guidance, intend, may, objective, oltloo
plan, seek, should, strive, target and will. Thesatements relate to future events or future
performance and reflect current assumptions, eatiens and estimates of management regarding
growth, results of operations, performance, busimpesspects and opportunities, Canadian economic
environment and liability to attract and retain tonsers. Such forward-looking statements reflect
current assumptions, expectations and estimatemasfagement and are based on information
currently available to Supremex as at the dathisfMID&A.

Forward-looking statements are subject to certisiksrand uncertainties, and should not be read as
guarantees of future performance or results andahagesults may differ materially from the
conclusion, forecast or projection stated in suctvérd-looking statements. These risks, unceresnti
and other factors include but are not limited te thilowing: economic cycles, availability of cagdit
decline in envelope consumption, increase of coitipet exchange rate fluctuation, raw material
increases, credits risks with respect to tradeivabkes, increase in funding of pension plans, glost
services deficiencies, interest rates fluctuatiod @otential risk of litigation. Such assumptions,
expectations, estimates, risks and uncertaintiegdiscussed throughout our MD&A for fiscal 2012
and, in particular, in “Risk Factors”. Consequenthye cannot guarantee that any forward-looking
statements will materialize. Readers should noteplany undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements.

Definition of EBITDA and Non-IFRS Measures

References to “EBITDA” are to earnings (loss) befdinancing charges, income tax expense,
amortization of property, plant and equipment afdntangible assets, (gain) loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and impairment ofdgalh. Supremex believes that EBITDA is a
measurement commonly used by readers of finanzEitdraents to evaluate a company’s operational
cash-generating capacity and ability to dischagénancial expenses.

EBITDA is not an earnings measure recognized unBB®S and does not have a standardized
meaning prescribed by IFRS. Therefore, EBITDA mayt be comparable to similar measures
presented by other entities. Investors are caufichat EBITDA should not be construed as an
alternative to net earnings determined in accorglamith IFRS as an indicator of the Company’'s
performance.
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Additional Information

Additional information relating to the Company iw#dable on SEDAR atvww.sedar.com.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Supremex Inc.
(Formerly Supremex Income Fund)

DecembeB31, 2012 and 2011

All amounts expressed in Canadian dollars
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of
Supremex Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated dinhrstatements of Supremex Inc,
which comprise the consolidated statements of Gr@rposition as at December 31, 2012
and 2011, and the consolidated statements of (&@s®)jngs, comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and cash flow for the years ended DecembeB@12 and 2011, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatoformation.

Management's responsibility for the consolidated fiancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation ese¢hconsolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards [“IFRS”], and for such internal
control as management determines is necessaryaiolesthe preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from materiastatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordawdh Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require thatomgply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstaint.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaimia evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesiehthe procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment ofrtkkes of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether dueraoidf or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal comti@lant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to desigdit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esqimg an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includegaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accouestimgates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the clhested financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagoresent fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Supremex Inc. as at Dewen81, 2012 and 2011, and its financial

performance and its cash flows for the years enbedember 31, 2012 and 2011 in
accordance with IFRS.

é'wq,t v ?M// d

Montreal, Canada,
March 11, 2013

1 CPA auditor, CA, public accountancy permit no. 8111

24



Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As al Decembe 31, 2012 2011
Notes $ $
ASSETS 13
Current assett
Cash 5,093,876 2,606,33;
Accounts receivab 5 15,071,817 18,740,49
Income tax receivak 11,115 —
Inventorie! 6 13,017,30 13,103,19
Prepaid expens 605,25¢ 512,58
Total current assets 33,799,371  34,962,60
Property, plant and equipm: 7 28,264,702 29,528,67
Deferred income tax ass 8 176,426 —
Intangible asse 9 20,435,129 26,599,02
Goodwill 1C 46,889,12 75,751,12
Total asset 129,564,75 166,841,43
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 11 18,157,589 19,990,28
Provision: 12 426,311 656,56’
Income tax payab — 3,490,99
Current portion of secured credit facilit 13 5,000,00! 5,000,001
Total current liabilities 23,583,90 29,137,84
Secured credit facilitie 13 44,355,599 49,176,93
Deferred income tax liabiliti¢ 8 — 2,182,39.
Accrued pension benefit liabili 14 21,852,000 19,251,10
Other pos-retirement benefit obligatio 14 615,20( 649,60(
Derivative financial liabilit 13 1,251,15. 1,776,29:
Equity
Share capiti 15 9,885,008 10,000,00
Contributed surplt 280,108,017 280,423,74
Deficit (252,002,14¢ (225,680,31:
Foreign currency translation rese (83,979) (76,161
Total equity 37,906,900 64,667,27
Total liabilities and equity 129,564,753 166,841,43

Commitment, contingencies and guaranteesd 1§

Subsequent eventsdte 22
See accompanying notes
On behalf of the Directors:

By: (Signed Michael Rapp
Directol

By: (Signed Gilles Cyi

Directol
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF (LOSS) EARNINGS

Years ended December @ 201z 2011
Notes $ $
Revenue 131,874,631 143,892,19
Operating expens 6,17 89,996,32 96,209,37
Selling, general and administrative expe 17 16,788,045 18,144,75
Operating earnings before amortization, (gain) loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
impairment of goodwill and restructuring expenses 25,090,262 29,538,069
Amortization of property, plant and equipm 7 3,499,08: 4,397,56.
Amortization of intangible asst 9 6,163,900 6,163,901
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and puopgn (17,517) 400,16!
Impairment of goodwi 10 28,862,000 —
Restructuring expens 12 — 1,089,40.
Operating (loss) earning (13,417,20¢ 17,487,04
Financing charge 13 2,361,428 5,974,75.
(Loss) earnings before income taxes (15,778,637) 11,512,29
Income tax expen 8 2,912,035 3,197,41
Net (loss) earning (18,690,677 8,314,87-
Basic and diluted net(loss) earnings per shar (0.63€3) 0.283¢
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 2R2,295 29,297,76

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Years ended December ?

Notes

201z 2011
$ $

Net (loss) earnings

(18,690,672) 8,314,87

Other comprehensive loss

Recognized actuarial loss on defined benefit per

plans, net of income tax recovery of $1,476,781

[2011 - $4,091,882] 14
Recognized actuarial loon other posretirement

benefit, net of income tax recovery of $7,810

[2011 — $9,944] 14
Foreign currency translation adjustm

(4,103,319) (11,818,418)

(21,890) (28,656)
(7,818) 7,51¢

Other comprehensive Ic

(4,133,027)  (11,839,55¢

Total comprehensive loss

(22,823,699) (3,524,682

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

Year ended December 31

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share capital Fund units Contributed surplus Foreign currency
[notes 1 & 15] [notes 1 & 15] [notes 1 & 15] Deficit translation reserve Total equity
$ $ $ $ $ $
As at December 31, 2011 10,000,00 — 280,423,74  (225,680,31: (76,161  64,667,27
Netloss — — — (18,690,677 — (18,690,679
Othercomprehensive lo — — — (4,125,20¢ (7818 (4,133,027
Total comprehensivloss — — — (22,815,881 (781¢) (22,823,69¢
Dividends declare[note16] — — — (3,505,952 — (3,505,952
Shares repurchased ¢
cancelled fiote 15 (114,992) — (315,729) — — (430,721)

As at December 31, 2012 9,885,008 — 280,108,017 2(2B2,146) (83,979) 37,906,900
As at December 31, 2010 — 282,798,32 7,625,42.  (219,511,31¢ (83,679  70,828,75
Net earning — — — 8,314,87. — 8,314,87.
Othercomprehensive lo — — — (11,847,074 7,51¢ (11,839,55¢
Total comprehensivioss — — — (3,532,20C 7,51¢ (3,524,682
Conversion into a corporati 282,798,32 (282,798,32: — — — —
Reduction of stated capi (272,798,32: — 272,798,32 — — —
Dividends declare — — — (2,636,79) — (2,636,799
As at December 31, 2011 10,000,00 — 280,423,74  (225,680,31) (76,167  64,667,27

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Years ended December 31 2012 2011
Notes $ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) earnings (18,690,672) 8,314,874
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile net earnings teash flows
Amortization of property, plant and equipm 7 3,499,08: 4,397,56
Amortization of intangible assets 9 6,163,900 6,163,900
Amortization of deferred financing co 13 229,55t 881,79t
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and pognt (17,517) 400,165
Impairment of goodwiill 10 28,862,000 —
(Gain) loss on valuation of derivative financiadiruments 13 (525,139) 1,776,293
Deferred income tax recove 8 (874,227 (1,092,562
Working capital adjustments
Variation in accounts receivable 3,668,682 745,823
Variation in inventorie 85,88 (1,163,472
Variation in prepaiexpense (92,674 (87,391
Variation in accounts payable and accrued liabsiti (1,832,691) (121,532)
Variation in provisions (230,256) (274,730)
Variation in income tareceivable anpayable (3502,11) 2,745,31.
Change in accrued pension benefit liability (2,979,200) (3,643,500)
Change in other post-retirement benefit obligation (64,100) (37,300)
Net cash flows from operating activitie 13.700,52¢ 19,005,23
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Business acquisitic — 109,62:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 7 (2,347,392) (3,998,290)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 107,417 336,611
Proceeds from sale of assets held for — 5,727,17
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities (2,239,975) 2,175,114
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term credit facility (5,000,000) (15,625,000)
Dividends paid 16 (3,505,952) (2,636,799)
Financing cost incurre (50,891 (858,852
Purchase of share capital for cancellation 15 (430,721) —
Proceeds from revolving credit facility — 709,114
Distributions paid on Fund un — (292,978
Net cash flows used in financing activities (8,98664) (18,704,515)
Net change in cas 2,472987 2,475,83
Net foreign exchange difference 14,557 (18,379)
Cash, beginning of period 2,606,332 148,874
Cash, ending of periot 5,093,87! 2,606,33.
Supplemental information
Interest paid 2,660,394 3,135,932
Interest received 5,780 5,679
Income taxes paid 7,336,626 1,523,427
Incometaxes receive 167,40¢ 29,37(

@ Amounts paid and received for interest and fobime taxes were reflected as cash flows from opeyaittivities in the

consolidated statements of cash flows.

See accompanying notes
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Supremex Inc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Supremex Inc. (the “Company” or “Supremex”) wasoiporated on March 31, 2006 under the
Canadian Business Corporation Ad¢thhe common shares (“common share”) of the Compaay
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”") untlee symbol SXP. The registered office is
located at 7213 Cordner Street in LaSalle, Quebbe. Company is the successor to Supremex
Income Fund (the “Fund”) following the completiori e conversion of the Fund from an
income trust to a corporation, on January 1, 2@i4 ‘[Effective Date”).

On May 7, 2010, the unitholders of the Fund appdowhe plan of arrangement (the

“Arrangement”) pursuant to which the Fund convefftedn an income trust structure to a public
corporation named Supremex Inc. The final ordehefSuperior Court of Québec with respect to
the Arrangement was obtained on May 10, 2010.

Under the Arrangement, unitholders of the Fundiveck for each unit of the Fund held, one
common share of Supremex.

The Arrangement has been accounted for as a cagtofunterests of the Fund since Supremex
continues to operate the business of the Fund @ tare no ownership changes. Under the
continuity of interest method of accounting, thensfer of the assets, liabilities and equity of the
Fund to Supremex is recorded at the net book \adust the Effective Date of transaction. As a
result, for accounting purposes, the transactioredglired to be accounted for as though the
Company was a continuation of the Fund but withcagpital reflecting the exchange of Fund
units for Supremex common shares. Therefore, ceterims such as shareholder/unitholder,
dividend/distribution and share/unit may be usddroghangeably throughout these consolidated
financial statements. For the periods reported auphé Effective Date of the conversion, all
payments to unitholders were in the form of fundt ufistributions, and after that date all
payments to shareholders were in the form of divilde

Any references to the Fund for periods after JantiaR011, shall mean Supremex Inc. as a
successor of the Fund. References to “Companyar&sh“dividends” and “shareholders” means

“fund”, “unit”, “distributions” and “unitholders” ér transactions that occurred before the
conversion of the Fund into a corporation.

Pursuant to the Arrangement, the stated capitahiBscommon shares was reduced to an amount
of $10 million as of the Effective Date.

The business of Supremex follows seasonal patisithsthe highest revenue occurring from
August to February due to seasonal advertisingraailing patters of its customers since the
highest number of mailings related to events indgdhe return to school, fund-raising and the
holiday and tax seasons take place during thabgeri

These consolidated financial statements were apdroy the Company’s Board of Directors on
March 11, 2013.
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Supremex Inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements were peddaraccordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”"), as issued by the rivattonal Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”). These consolidated financial statementrevprepared on a going concern basis, under
the historical cost convention, except for deriatifinancial instruments that have been
measured at fair value.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprisditiaacial statements of Supremex Inc. and its
subsidiaries, Buffalo Envelope Inc., Montreal Empa (2008) Inc. and Quebec Envelope (2008)
Inc., as at December 31, 2012.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the dafteacquisition, being the date on which the
Company obtains control, and continue to be codatdd until the date that such control ceases.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries aspamed for the same reporting period as the
parent company, using consistent accounting pslicil intra-group balances, income and
expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividesdking from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for usingdgeisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideratioeférred, measured at the fair value at the
date of the acquisition. Acquisition costs incuraed expensed.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being thecess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred over the Company’s net identifiableetssacquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of thet mssets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measuredaist less any accumulated impairment losses.
Segment reporting

The Company operates in one reporting segmentnraifacturing and sale of a broad range of
stock and custom envelopes and related products.

Foreign currency translation
Supremex’s consolidated financial statements asgmted in Canadian dollars, which is also its
functional currency. Supremex and its subsidiagish determine their own functional currency

and items included in each of their financial staats are measured using that functional
currency.
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Supremex Inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiall}corled by the entities at their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the datéheftransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in ifprecurrencies are retranslated at the
functional currency spot rate of exchange rulinthatreporting date. All differences are taken to
the consolidated statement of (loss) earnings.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms stbifical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the afates initial transactions.

Subsidiaries

The assets and liabilities of foreign operatiores taanslated into Canadian dollars at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and tb&itements of earnings are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the drdiosis. The exchange differences arising on
translation are recognized in other comprehensigs. |IOn disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relatinghtat particular foreign operation is
recognized in the consolidated statement of (leag)ings.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the ceradidn received or receivable, net of estimated
returns and discounts, and after eliminating irdB1oany sales.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wiheffollowing criteria are met:
e The risks and rewards of ownership, including manag involvement, have been
transferred to the buyer;
* The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
» The receipt of economic benefits is probable; and
» Costsincurred or to be incurred can be measutitbire

In addition to the above general principles, thenpany applies specific revenue recognition for
bill and hold transactions. When customers reqadstl and hold, revenue is recognized when
the customer is invoiced for goods that have beenlyred, packaged and made ready for
shipment. These goods are shipped within a spddifeiod of time and are segregated from
other inventory, the risk of ownership of the go@lassumed by the customer, and the terms and
collection experience on the related billings aresistent with all other sales.

Taxation
Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxisTiacognized in the consolidated statement

of (loss) earnings except to the extent it is eglatio items recognized in other comprehensive
loss or directly in equity.
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Supremex Inc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Current tax

Current tax expense is based on the results foyaghe as adjusted for items that are not taxable
or not deductible. Current tax is calculated usiag rates and laws that were enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reportiegod. Management periodically evaluates

positions taken in tax returns with respect toaitns in which applicable tax regulation is

subject to interpretation. Provisions are establistvhere appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized, using the liability heat, on temporary differences at the reporting
date arising between the tax bases of assets abilities and their carrying amounts in the

consolidated statement of financial position. Defdrtax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacti &nd of the reporting period, and which are
expected to apply when the related deferred inctamesset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities:

» Are generally recognized for all taxable tempordifferences;

» Are recognized for taxable temporary differencésimg on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the teragy difference can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences wilt reverse in the foreseeable future; and

* Are not recognized on temporary differences th&eafrom goodwill which is not
deductible for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets:

» Are recognized to the extent it is probable thatléde profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences (caogsfard of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses) can be utilized ; and

» Are reviewed at the end of the reporting period esdliced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profitsiveié available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recaghin respect of temporary differences that arise
on initial recognition of assets and liabilitiesjared other than in a business combination. The
transaction does not affect accounting profit otabde profit upon completion. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at egubrting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable prefill be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognizedrded tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it kaerbe probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Supremex Inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Salestax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognizedinetanfiount of sales tax, except:

» Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofsasseservices is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the salesisarecognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expéaseas applicable;

» Accounts receivables and trade payables that atedswith the amount of sales tax
included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, galpa to, the taxation authority is included as
part of the accounts payable and accrued liakilitiethe consolidated statement of financial
position.

Employee future benefits

The Company maintains three defined benefit pergiems, two of which are hybrid as they also
have a defined contribution component, coveringstauttially all of its employees. In the third
guarter of 2012, the Company converted for futemises its defined benefit pension plans into
defined contribution plans. All defined benefihg@n plans are funded. In the past, the acquired
businesses have also provided post-retirement astdemployment benefits plans to a limited
number of employees covering health care, denta aad life insurance. These benefits are
unfunded.

For defined benefit pension plans and other posil@yment benefits, the net periodic pension
expense is actuarially determined on an annuas lgsindependent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The determination of the neigaic pension expense requires assumptions
such as the expected return on assets availalilendopension obligations, the discount rate to
measure obligations, the expected mortality, theeeted retirement age, the expected rate of
future compensation increase and the expectedhioasdt cost trend rate. The assets are valued at
fair value. Actual results will differ from estimeat results which are based on assumptions. The
vested portion of past service cost arising froanphmendments is recognized immediately in
the consolidated statement of (loss) earnings.ufivested portion is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the average remaining period until #eebts become vested.

The asset or liability recognized in the consokdastatement of financial position is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the efthe reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The present value of the defined bendfgation for service accrued at calculation date
is determined by discounting the estimated futiashcoutflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated inctireency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating #mens of the related pension liability. All
actuarial gains and losses that arise in calcgatire present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets amogrized immediately in other comprehensive
loss. For funded plans, surpluses are recognizbdtorthe extent that the surplus is considered
recoverable taking into account future contribwsidor unfunded liability. Recoverability is
primarily based on the extent to which the Compeany unilaterally reduce future contributions
to the plan.
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Supremex Inc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Payments to defined contribution plans are expemsebhcurred, i.e., as the related employee
service is rendered.

Share-based compensation plan

The Company operates a cash-settled share-basguensation plan under which it receives
services from employees as consideration. The obgshe cash-settled share-based plan is
measured initially at fair value at grant date.sTaiir value is expensed over the period until the
vesting date with recognition of a correspondirability. The liability is re-measured to fair
value at each reporting date up to and includirgsittiement date, with changes in fair value
recognized in employee benefits expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are generally payable whenleympent is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee acceptsitasly redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefhen it is demonstrably committed to
either terminating the employment of current empbsy according to a detailed formal plan
without realistic possibility of withdrawal or priming termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Basic and diluted net earnings per share

The Company presents basic net earnings per shraits Eommon shares, calculated by dividing
the net earnings attributable to common shareh®ldethe Company by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andesdizable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out method. The cost of finished agis and work-in-progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs atated production overheads. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the normal cowbéusiness, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Amstrtization is calculated using the straight-
line method over the following estimated usefukv

Buildings 10 to 40 years
Leasehold improvements Lease term
Machinery and equipment Seven to 15 years
Office equipment Three to five years
Computer equipment Three years
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Supremex Inc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Residual values, method of amortization and udefe$ are reviewed annually prior to year-end
and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Upon acquisition, identifiable intangible assete eecorded at fair value if they result from a

business acquisition, if not, at cost and are edrmt cost less accumulated amortization.
Intangible assets acquired are comprised of custoatetionships and non-compete agreements
which are amortized on a straight-line basis oganyfears.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairments are recorded when the recoverable ammiuassets are less than their carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher afsaat’s fair value less cost to sell or its value
in use. Impairment losses, other than those rglatin goodwill, are evaluated for potential
reversals when events or changes in circumstanagsant such consideration.

The carrying values of all intangible assets araperty, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurostaimdicate that their carrying amount may
not be recoverable. For the purposes of assessipgiiment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiatdsh flows. The Company bases its impairment
calculation on detailed budgets and forecast caticuls, which generally cover a period of four
years.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as atBraber 31 or more often if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be impairBoe impairment test consists of a comparison
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generatingtanvhich goodwill is assigned with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss in the cargyamount compared with the fair value is
charged to earnings in the period in which the iimmpant occurs.
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Supremex Inc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]

Disposal of long-lived assets and discontinued ofions

Long-lived assets are classified as held for shléhé carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather thhrough continued use and such sale is
considered highly probable with the asset availdétseémmediate sale in its present condition.
The criteria for classification as held for saleliuges a firm decision by management or the
board of directors to dispose of a business omamof selected assets and the expectation that
such disposal will be completed within a 12 monghigd. Assets held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts or their famlue less costs to sell and are no longer
amortized. Assets held for sale are classifiedsmdtinued operations if the operations and cash
flows can be clearly distinguished, operationalhd dor financial reporting purposes from the
rest of the Company and they:

» Represent a separate major line of business orgeloigal area of operations;

» Are part of a single coordinated plan to dispose skparate major line of business or
geographical area of operations; or

» Are a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a viexd¢sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company hasseprt legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outfbf resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount can be reliably estichaferovisions are measured at the present
value of the expected expenditures to settle tHgailon using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value ofeynand the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage @& ismecognized as financing charge.

Restructuring provisions

Restructuring provisions are only recognized whemnegal recognition criteria for provisions are
fulfilled. Additionally, the Company needs to follca detailed formal plan about the business or
part of the business concerned, the location andbeu of employees affected, a detailed
estimate of the associated costs and appropriateline. The people affected must also have a
valid expectation that the restructuring is beirggried out or the implementation has been
initiated already.

If the effect of the time value of money is matknmovisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, thesrighecific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to theggessf time is recognized as a financing charge.

Leases

Leases are classified as either operating or fimabased on the substance of the transaction at
the inception of the lease. Classification is reeased if the terms of the lease are changed.
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Supremex Inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Operating lease

Leases in which a signification portion of the ssind rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Paymad&s an operating lease are recognized in the
consolidated statement of earnings on a straigbtbiasis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases in which substantially all the risks and anels of ownership are transferred to the
Company are classified as finance leases. Asseattingdinance lease criteria are capitalized at
the lower of the present value of the related lg@sgnents or the fair value of the leased asset at
the inception of the lease. Minimum lease paymargsapportioned between the finance charges
and the liability. The finance charges are alloddteeach period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest omdéh@aining balance of the liability.

Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets in ftllwing categories: at fair value through
earnings or loans and receivables. The classificatiepends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. The Company detesrthe classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Fair valuethrough earnings

Classification

Financial assets are classified at fair value thnoearnings if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-term, such as fiierassets held for trading, or if so designated
by the Company. Assets in this category principaltlude derivatives which do not qualify for
hedge accounting and cash.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets carried at fair value throughiagsare initially recognized, and subsequently
carried, at fair value, with changes recognizethi consolidated statement of (loss) earnings.
Transaction costs are expensed.

Loans and receivables

Classification

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finaresslets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Theymckided in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the remprieriod. These are classified as non-current

assets. The Company’s loans and receivables camacisounts receivable in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Supremex Inc.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [Cont'd]
Recognition and measurement

Loans and receivables are initially recognized air fvalue plus transaction costs and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using tleetife interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Comparsgsses whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired. Impairmentsnaeasured as the excess of the carrying amount
over the fair value and are recognized in the clideted statement of (loss) earnings.

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, provisiand secured credit facilities are classified as
financial liabilities. They are initially recognideat fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valoa the date a contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated fifenstatements requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions thatt atfe reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disdoefircontingent liabilities at the end of the

reporting period. However, uncertainty about thassumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment toctdmeying amount of the asset or liability

affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and d#esources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of @agisa material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the néxariicial year are discussed below:

Intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill arise out of busiresmbinations for which the Company has
applied the purchase method of accounting. Thehaisee method involves the allocation of the
cost of an acquisition to the underlying net assetulired based on their respective estimated
fair value. As part of this allocation process, @@mpany must identify and attribute values and
estimated lives to the intangible assets acquifdtese determinations involve significant
estimates and assumptions regarding cash flow giirejes, economic risk and weighted average
cost of capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012 and 2011

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS [Con t'd]

These estimates and assumptions determine the amtacated to other identifiable intangible
assets and goodwill as well as the amortizatiorogdor identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives. If future events or results differ adverséigm these estimates and assumptions, the
Company could record increased amortization or immnt charges in the future [see note 10].

Employee future benefits

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans progigiension and other post-employment
benefits to covered employees. The determinatioexpiense and obligations associated with
employee future benefits requires the use of assangpsuch as the expected return on assets
available to fund pension obligations, the discowate to measure obligations, the expected
mortality, the expected retirement age, the expecte of future compensation increase and the
expected healthcare cost trend rate. Because ttegnideation of the cost and obligations
associated with employee future benefits requites use of various assumptions, there is
measurement uncertainty inherent in the actuadghlation process [see note 14]. Actual results
will differ from estimated results which are basgdassumptions.

Income taxes

The Company computes an income tax provision ih @h¢he jurisdictions in which it operates.
However, actual amounts of income tax expense loatpme final upon filing and acceptance of
the tax return by the relevant authorities, whicbuw subsequent to the issuance of the financial
statements. Additionally, estimation of income &xecludes evaluating the recoverability of
deferred tax assets based on an assessment obitle @ use the underlying future tax
deductions against future taxable income beforg twgire. The assessment is based upon
existing tax laws and estimates of future taxabt®ine. To the extent estimates differ from the
final tax return, earnings would be affected inbsequent period.

The Company is subject to taxation in numeroussglictions. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatis uncertain during the normal course of
business. The Company maintains provision for uagertax positions that it believes
appropriately reflect its risk with respect to taatters under active discussion, audit, dispute or
appeal with tax authorities, or which are otherwésmsidered to involve uncertainty. These
provisions are made using the best estimate ofatheunt expected to be paid based on a
qualitative assessment of all relevant factors. Tmenpany reviews the adequacy of these
provisions at the end of the reporting period. Hasveit is possible that, at some future date, an
additional liability could result from audits byxiag authorities. Where the final outcome of
these tax-related matters is different from the am® that were initially recorded, such
differences will affect the tax provisions in theripd in which such determination is made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS [Con t'd]
Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets of the Company, including progeplant and equipment, are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnegaimdicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be fully recoverable. Impairmeassessed when the discounted expected future
cash flows derived from an asset are less thardtsying amount. Impairment losses are
recognized for the amount by which the carryingueabf an asset exceeds its fair value. The
Company periodically reviews the estimated uséfekl of all long-lived assets and revises them
if necessary.

4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Certain new standards, interpretations, amendnagatsmprovements to existing standards were
issued by the International Accounting Standardar8q“IASB”) or International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) thate mandatory for accounting periods
beginning after January 1, 2013 or later periode §tandards impacted that are applicable to the
Company are as follows:

* IFRS 9,Financial Instruments
In October 2010, the IASB issued IFRSFnancial Instrumenty“IFRS 9”). IFRS 9,
which replaces IAS 39,Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
establishes principles for the financial reportiof financial assets and financial
liabilities that will present relevant and usefuifarmation to users of financial
statements for their assessment of the amount&giend uncertainty of an entity’s
future cash flows.

 |FRS 1Q Consolidated Financial Statements
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS X0pnsolidated Financial Statemer{tt~RS 10").
IFRS 10, which replaces SIC-12pnsolidation — Special Purpose Entitiasd part of
IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemeptsvides additional guidance
regarding the concept of control as the determiféctpr in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statetaenf the parent company.

* IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 1BDjsclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(“IFRS 12"). IFRS 12 is a new and comprehensivaddad on disclosure requirements
for all forms of interests in other entities, indiong joint arrangements, associates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balancet sledécles.

* |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS IRBair Value MeasuremerftIFRS 13"). IFRS 13
will improve consistency and reduce complexity bgviding a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurerhtdisclosure requirements for use
across IFRS.
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4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS [Cont'd]

* ]AS 1, Financial Statement Presentation
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAErigncial Statement Presentation
(“IAS 1"). This amendment to IAS 1 will improve theresentation of the components of
other comprehensive income.

* IAS 19,Employee Benefits
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAEDployee BenefitE'|AS 19”).
This amendment to IAS 19 will improve the recogmitiand disclosure requirements for
defined benefits plans.

These new standards are effective for the Compantésim and annual consolidated financial
statements commencing January 1, 2013. Howev@eaember 2011, the IASB has postponed
the mandatory application of IFR$ Binancial Instrumentsp January 1, 2015.

* |AS 32,Financial Instruments: Presentation

In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to3&3inancial Instruments:
Presentation(“IAS 32") clarifying the requirements for offsetty financial assets and
liabilities. The amendments shall be applied touahrperiods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014. The IASB also issued amendmeniS8R8 7,Financial Instruments:
Disclosure (“IFRS 7”) improving disclosure on offsetting ofnfincial assets and
liabilities. These amendments shall be appliedrioual and interim periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013.

The Company is assessing the impact of these namdatds on its consolidated financial
statements.

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

$ $

Trade receivable 14,572,95 17,727,39
Less: Allowance for doubtful accou (108,514 (237,360
Trade receivable- ne 14,464,442 17,490,03
Other receivable 607,375 1,250,46!

15,071,817 18,740,49

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing andearerally on 30-60 days terms.

42



Supremex Inc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2012 and 2011

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE [Cont'd]

The aging analysis of trade receivables at eaatbrtiag date was as follows:

December 31

December 31

2012 2011
$ $
Curren 9,627,835 11,990,42
31-60day:s 3,768,323 4,411,80
61- 90 day: 955,385 910,26«
91-120 day 126,62( 203,12:
Over 120 day 94,793 211,78:
14,572,956 17,727,39
Allowance for doubtful accounts
The changes in the allowance for doubtful accowet® as follows:
December31, December 31
2012 2011
$ $
Balance, beginning of ye 237,360 62,71«
Charge for the ye 51,286 235,52
Utilized (179,965 (61,109
Impact of foreign exchange (loss gains (167) 22¢
Balance, end of year 108,514 237,36(

The Company is exposed to normal credit risk wigspect to its accounts receivable and

maintains provisions for potential credit lossesteRtial for such losses is mitigated because
there is no significant exposure to any singleaust and because customer credit worthiness is
evaluated before credit is extended.

6. INVENTORIES

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

$ $

Raw material 2,897,252 3,060,48!
Work in progres 99,941 227,18
Finished gooc 10,020,112 9,815,51!
13,017,305 13,103,19

The cost of inventories recognized as an expendeénafuded in operating expenses, including
the related amortization of property, plant andigapent allocated to inventories, during the year
ended December 31, 2012 is $93,283,795 [2011 -,408(¥33].
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land,
buildings Machinery Office and
and leasehold and computer
improvements  equipment  equipment Total
$ $ $ $

Cost.
At December 31, 20: 13,781,84 33,434,17 1,331,84. 48,547,86
Acquisitior 1,743,49: 2,104,47 150,31¢ 3,998,29
Disposal (343,129 (1,337,413 (28,831 (1,709,373
Transfer from assets held for ¢ — 34,93° — 34,93°
Translation adjustme 25¢ 32,11¢ 1,29( 33,66
At December 31, 20: 15,182,46 34,268,29 1,454,62. 50,905,38
Acquisitior 61,07« 2,111,66 174,65: 2,347,39:
Disposal — (448,965 (5,823 (454,788
Translation adjustme (255 (28,209 (1,451 (29,915
At December 31, 202 15,243,28 35,902,78 1,621,99 52,768,07
Amortization and impairment :
At Decembe 31, 201! 1,903,04 15,203,24 991,62¢ 18,097,91
Amortizatior 455,86: 3,777,01. 164,68t 4,397,56.
Disposal (343,129 (776,155 (28,831 (1,148,115
Transfer from assets held for ¢ — 21,57 — 21,577
Translation adjustme 267 6,017 1,48¢ 7,77C
At December 31, 20: 2,016,04. 18,231,69 1,128,96! 21,376,71
Amortizatior 444,90¢ 2,884,91 169,27( 3,499,08:
Disposal — (359,065 (5,823 (364,888
Translation adjustme (255 (5,834 (1,451 (7,540
At December 31, 2012 2,460,697 20,751,709 1,290,96524,503,371
Net book value
At December 31, 20: 13,166,42 16,036,59 325,65: 29,528,67
At December 31, 2012 12,782,588 15,151,080 331,03428,264,702

Effective October 1, 2011, the Company reviewed ukeful lives of its main manufacturing
equipment and determined that an adjustment wadeded&he useful lives have been extended
to at least five years considering their conditiarich resulted in a decreased amortization
charge of approximately $0.4 million in 2011 and3sillion in 2012. The expected impacts of
this change in the upcoming years are a decreaeeiamortization charge of approximately
$0.2 million in 2013 and a total increase of $1i8iom for the years thereafter up to 2016.
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8. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense recednizthe consolidated statement of (loss)

earnings were as follows:

2012 2011
$ $
Current income tax:
Current income tax exper 3,786,26. 4,289,97
Deferred income tax
Reversal otemporary differenct (874,227) (1,092,562
Income tax expens 2,912,035 3,197,41
Income taxes on items recognized in other compsheoss were as follows:
2012 2011
$ $
Deferred income tax related to items credited tlyec
to equity during the year:
Deferred tax benefit on recognized actuarial las
defined benefit pension plans (1,476,781) (4,091,882)
Deferred tax benefit on recognized actuarial las
other post-retirement benefit (7,810) (9,944)
Income tax benefit charged to othe
comprehensive loss (1,484,591) (4,101,826)

The income tax expense differs from the expense wwald be obtained
combined Canadian income tax (federal and provinagfollows

by applying the

201z 2011
$ $
(Loss) earnings before income ts (15,778,637 11,512,29
Income tax(recovery)expense at combined federal
provincial statutory rate of 25.9% [2011 — 27.4%)] (4,085,089) 3,154,368
Impact of impairment of goodwill not deductible faix
purposes 6,969,268 —
Effect of change ilenacted tax rat 43,33: 88,24!
Nonr-deductible expenses and of (15,475 (45,196
Income tax expens 2,912,03! 3,197,41

Changes in statutory rate mainly result from thduogion in the federal and Ontario corporation
tax rate, as well as a change in the proporticdh@fCompany’s earnings in the two jurisdictions,

which have different tax rates
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8.

INCOME TAXES [Cont'd]
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax relates to the following

Consolidated statement Consolidated statement
of financial position of (loss) earnings
December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ $ $ $

Deferred tax assets
Accrued pension benefit liability 5,657,000 4,950,263 770,044 932,089
Goodwill 1,932,948 1,625,168 (307,780) 214,665
Othel 355,52 502,94( 155,22: (3,419
Derivative financial liability 323,898 456,759 132,861 (456,759)
Non-capital losses 31,684 162,123 130,439 11,621
Initial public offering expens: — — — 211,36.

8,301,059 7,697,253 880,785 909,559
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets 4,422,905 5,891,375 1,468,470 1,471,686
Property, plant and equipment 3,310,146 3,448,338 138,192 370,900
Other 391,582 539,932 148,350 159,535

8,124,63. 9,879,64 1,755,01 2,002,12
Deferred tax recovery (874,227 (1,092,562
Net deferred income tax assets

(liabilities) 176,426 (2,182,392)

Reconciliation of net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

2012 2011
$ $
Balance- beginning of the ye: (2,182,392) (7,376,78I)
Tax recovery during the year recognized in the clidated
statement o(loss)earning 874,227 1,092,562
Tax benefit recognized in other compreheniloss 1,484,591 4,101,822
Balance- end of yeal 176,426 (2,182,39)
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer  Non-compete

relationships agreements Total
$ $ $
Cosl 60,884,00 755,00 61,639,00
Accumulated amortization:
At December 31, 20: 28,517,23 358,83 28,876,07
Amortizatior 6,088,40! 75,50( 6,163,90
At December 31, 20: 34,605,63 434,33. 35,039,97
Amortizatior 6,088,401 75,50( 6,163,90
At December 31, 2012 40,694,039 509,832 41,203,871
Net book value:
At December 31, 20: 26,278,36 320,66! 26,599,02
At December 31, 2012 20,189,961 245,168 20,435,129
10. GOODWILL
$
Cost
At December 31, 20: 75,751,12
At December 31, 201 75,751,12
Impairment of goodwi (28,862,00C
At December 31, 2012 46,889,125

Impairment test of goodwiill

During the third quarter of 2012, several new iattics have shown that the volume decrease in
North America’s envelope industry was higher thapeeted and that this decline is expected to
continue in the upcoming years. This deteriorat®particularly confirmed by the larger than
expected decline in demand for uncoated fine pajsmijne that has accelerated since June 2012.
Negotiations and discussions with key customerth@nthird quarter have also shown to be a
permanent reduction of their needs, some have mamtly announced the abandonment of the
use of envelopes for a portion of their activities.

Therefore, the Company has had to revise its fimhmarojections and perform a goodwill
impairment test as at September 30, 2012 insteat Dfecember 31, 2012 which would be in
accordance with its policy described in note 2. Téeoverable value of the Company’s only
cash-generating unit, determined on the basis lofevia use, was less than its carrying values.
As a result, a goodwill impairment charge of $28i8ion was recorded in the third quarter of
2012.

As at December 31, 2012, the Company has revietgedoiodwill impairment test and as no

assumptions significantly changed since Septembge2@12, the Company concluded that there
was no additional impairment needed in the carrgimgpunt of its goodwill.
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10. GOODWILL [Cont'd]
Valuation technique

The Company uses the discounted cash flows (“D@te)hod to determine the value in use of
its cash-generating unit and has not made any esatqthe valuation methodology used to
assess goodwill impairment since the last annupairment test.

Significant assumptions

The income approach is predicated upon the valubeofuture cash flows that a business will
generate going forward. The DCF method, which wseduas at September 30, 2012 and as at
December 31, 2012, involves projecting cash flowd aonverting them into a present value
equivalent through discounting. The discounting cpss uses a rate of return that is
commensurate with the risk associated with thenmssi or asset and the time value of money.
This approach requires assumptions about revermgtigror decline rates, operating margins,
tax rate and discount rate.

Growth or decline of revenue

The assumptions used were based on the Compangimiah budget. The Company projected
revenue, operating margins and cash flows for agef four years that reflect lower demand
and applied a perpetual long-term decline ratéHfemperiod thereafter. In arriving at its forecasts
the Company considered past experience, econoemddras well as industry and market trends.

Discount rate

The Company assumed a pre-tax discount rate inr acdealculate the present value of its
projected cash flows. The discount rate represemigeighted average cost of capital (“WACC”)
for comparable companies operating in a similaugtiy. The WACC is an estimate of the
overall required rate of return on an investmentifath debt and equity owners and serves as the
basis for developing an appropriate discount R&termination of the WACC requires separate
analysis of the cost of equity and debt, and canmsid risk premium based on an assessment of
risks related to the projected cash flows.

The key assumptions used in performing the impaitrtesst were as follows:

2012 2011
Pre-tax discount rai 15.6% 15.8%
Tax ratt 25.8% 25.7%
Perpetuadecline rate 3.0% 0.0%

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Management believes that an increase of 1% of thdgx discount rate or an increase of 1% of

the perpetual decline rate, in isolation, wouldrdase the recoverable amount by approximately
$4.4 million.
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11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

12.

13.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

$ $

Trade payable 10,141,306 9,947,32
Accrued liabilitie! 8,016,283 10,042,95

18,157,589 19,990,28

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and areatigrsettled on 20 to 60 day terms.

PROVISIONS

In connection with the acquisitions of NPG Envel@{¢PG”) in 2007, Montreal Envelope Inc.
(“Montreal”) in 2008 and Pioneer Envelopes Ltd.i@feer”) in 2010, the Company adopted a
plan for the integration and restructuring of tloguared businesses. As a result, the Company
recognized a provision for severance, relocatiah exit costs relating to certain employees and
facilities of the acquired businesses. As at Deearith, 2012, the amount of the remaining
accrued restructuring provision was $0.4 millio®.Bmillion as at December 31, 2011]. This
amount is related to deferred severance for empkypa long-term disability and is payable on
demand.

The Company incurred additional expenses durind 20the form of severances and other costs
as a result of the restructuring to the Toronto sliothitreal operations. The remaining balance, as

at December 31, 2011, of $0.2 million of these esgs were paid during the first quarter of
2012.

The following is a summary of amounts accrued aid pelating to restructuring expenses.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
$ $
Balance, beginning cyeal 656,56 931,29
Restructuring expenses charged against eal — 1,089,40.
Cash paymen (230,256) (1,364,131
Balance, end of year 426,311 656,56°

SECURED CREDIT FACILITIES

As at December 31, 2012, the Company has secueglit ¢acilities consisting of a $20 million
revolving facility, a $45 million term credit fagy [$50 million as at December 31, 2011] and a
$25 million acquisition/capital expenditures fagiljsee note 22]. The facilities bear interest at a
floating rate based on the Canadian prime rateaokérs’ acceptance rates, plus an applicable
margin on those rates.
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13. SECURED CREDIT FACILITIES [Cont'd]

The revolving credit facility may be used to refica existing credit facilities, finance working
capital requirements and for other general corporptrposes. The acquisition/capital
expendituresfacility may be used to finance permitted acquisisi and permitted capital
expenditures.

The revolving and term credit facilities mature November 4, 2015. The acquisition/capital
expenditures credit facility matures on Novembe2@l3 with the option to extend up to
November 4, 2015. The term credit facility is repllg in quarterly principal instalments of
$1,250,000. In addition, 50% of the annual exces ¢low, as defined in the credit agreement,
will be applied against the term credit facilitytife debt to EBITDA ratio rises above 2.50, or
25% if the debt to EBITDA ratio falls between 2.50d 2.00. No additional repayment is
required if the debt to EBITDA ratio falls below0R, which was the case in 2011 and 2012.

Amounts owed under revolving and term credit feiei are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011

$ $

Revolving credit facilit 5,000,001 5,000,001
Term credit facilit 45,000,00 50,000,00
Less: deferred financing costs, (644,401) (823,066
49,355,599 54,176,93

Current portiol (5,000,000) (5,000,00€
Long-term portion of secured credit facilit 44 355,599 49,176,93

Under the terms of the secured credit facilitibs, Company is required, among other conditions,
to meet certain covenants. The Company was in darmg# with these covenants as at
December 31, 2012. The secured credit facilitiess @ollateralized by hypothec and security
interests covering all present and future assettsso€ompany and its subsidiaries.

Minimum required payments on secured credit faedliare as follows:

$
201: 5,000,00t
201¢ 5,000,00t
201¢ 40,000,00

As at December 31, 2012, the effective interest wat the revolving and term credit facilities
was 3.54% (3.53% as at December 31, 2011). On dahda2011, the Company entered into an
interest rate swap agreement for an amount of §B@mat a fixed rate of 2.84% until
January 14, 2016, excluding the applicable margin.
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13. SECURED CREDIT FACILITIES [Cont'd]

Financing charges are as follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Interest on secured credit facilities 2,629,629 3,304,402

Other interest 27,382 12,260

Amortization of deferred financing costs 229,556 881,796
(Gain) loss on valuation of derivative financiasrument

(interest rate swap) (525,139) 1,776,293

2,361,428 5,974,751

14. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

(a) Pension Plans

The Company maintains three defined benefit pengians covering certain salaried and hourly
employees. Two of these pension plans are hybigduse they also have a defined contribution
component. All defined benefit pension plans amed&d. During the third quarter of 2012, the
Company converted, for future service, its definkenefit pension plans into defined

contributions plans.

The defined benefit and defined contribution plaxpenses included in operating, selling,
general and administrative expenses are as follows:

2012 2011
$ $

Defined benefit plans
Current service cos 1,677,80I 2,399,701
Interest expense on benefit obliga 4,058,601 4,258,001
Expected return on plan as: (4,337,50C (4,613,000
Defined benefit plans expen 1,398,90! 2,044,701
Definedcontribution plan expen 938, 70( 496,60(
Pension plans expense 2,337,601 2,541,301
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14. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS [Cont'd]

The following table presents the changes in theuactbenefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets, as well as the funded status of tireedebenefit plans.

December 31, December 31
2012 2011
$ $
Change in accrued benefit obligatio
Benefit obligation, beginning of the y« 91,597,10 78,380,40
Current service ca 1,677,800 2,399,701
Interest co: 4,058,60! 4,258,001
Employees contributic 308,90( 606,10(
Actuarial losses on obligati 9,143,20! 10,885,20
Benefits pai (4,798,10C (4,932,30C
Benefit obligation, end of ye 101,987,50 91,597,10
Change in plan assets
Fair value of pla assets, beginning of the y 72,346,00 73,126,80
Expected return on plan as: 4,337,501 4,613,00!
Actuarialgains losse) 3,563,101 (6,755,80C
Employees contributic 308,90( 606,10(
Employer contributio 4,378,10 5,688,201
Benefits pai (4,798,10C (4,932,30C
Fair value of plan assets, end of 80,135,50 72,346,00
Net amount recognized as accrued pension benefit
liability (21,852,000) (19,251,100)

The defined benefit plans amount recognized inratbenprehensive loss, before taxation, is as
follows:

2012 2011

$ $

Actuarial losse (5,580,100) (17,641,00C
Asset limit and minimum funding adjustm — 1,730,70!

(5,580,10C  (15,910,30C

The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recoghii® the consolidated statement of
comprehensive loss is $23,410,000 as at Decemb&032 [2011 - $17,829,900].
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14. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS [Cont'd]

The Company expects to contribute approximately $3llion to its defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans in 2013.

The assumptions used in computing the net pensistrvwere as follows:

2012 2011
% %
Discount rate for accrued benefit obliga 3.9C 4.5(C
Discount rate for net pension ¢ 4.50 5.5C
Expected return on plan as: 6.00 6.2F
Rate of compensation incre. 3.25 3.5C

The expected rate of return on assets is baseteoexpected rate of return on each asset class
category using a stochastic projection tool thaiegates multiple expected-return scenarios over
long periods of time for different asset classegdeted fees payable by the plan are deducted
from this expected rate of return. The actualrretan plan assets was a gain of $7,900,600 for
the year ended December 31, 2012 [2011 - loss,d#3B00].

The weighted average allocation of plan assets Be@mber 3k as follows:

2012 2011
% %
Equity securitie 67.¢ 62.C
Debi 29.0 31.7
Cash and shc-term securitie 3.1 6.3
Total 100.0 100.C

The pension plans have an investment policy with ftllowing target asset allocations: 57%
equity securities, 42% debt securities and 1% dlon securities with a tolerable deviation of
such allocation.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were noetgx shares held in the Company’s
pension plans.

Sensitivity analysis
For the Company, a 0.25% increase or decreaseeimlifitount rate would have decreased or
increased the defined benefit obligation by apprately $3.8 million as at December 31, 2012.

A 0.25% increase or decrease in the expected faitwn would have decreased or increased
the pension expense by approximately $0.2 millanttie year 2012.
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(b) Post-retirement benefits other than pension

The following tables provide a reconciliation ofetlechange in the accrued benefit obligation
of the plans.

December 31 December 31

201z 2011
$ $

Change in accrued benefit obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of ye 649,60( 648,30(
Interest cos 27,20( 33,60(
Benefits pai (91,300 (70,900
Actuarial losse 29,70( 38,60(
Benefit obligation, end of year 615,20( 649,60(

Post-employment and other retirement benefits pdamsiot funded.

The other post-retirement benefit cost includedperating, selling, general and administrative
expenses is composed of the interest cost on itiabdf $27,200 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 [2011 - $33,600].

The other post-retirement benefits amount recoghire other comprehensive loss, before
taxation, consists of actuarial losses of $29,72@1 - $38,600]. The cumulative amount of
actuarial losses recognized in the consolidateersent of comprehensive loss is $96,700 as at
December 31, 2012 [2011 - $67,000].

The assumptions used in the measurement of the &uoyispother post-retirement benefit cost
were as follows:

2012 2011
% %
Weighted-average assumptions
Discount rate for benefit obligati 3.9C 4.5(
Discount rate for net periodic benefit ¢ 4.5C 5.5(C

As at December 31, 2012, the assumed health camd tate for 2012 was 6.7%, progressively
declining to 2.5% in 2024. A one-percentage-polenge in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have no material impact.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL
Share capital

An unlimited number of commons shares are issuablch common share represents a
shareholder’s proportionate undivided intereshen@€ompany. Each common share confers to its
holder the right to one vote at any meeting of shalders and to participate equally and rateably
in any dividends of the Company, if any, and, ia #vent of any required distribution of all of
the property of the Company, in the net assetheflompany remaining after satisfaction of all
liabilities.

Fund units

The Fund Declaration of Trust provided that anmitkd number of units may be issued. Each
unit was transferable and represented an equaVidedi beneficial interest in any distributions
from the Fund and in the net assets of the Furdurfis were of the same class with equal rights
and privileges. Each unit entitled the holder tatipgate equally in all allocations and
distributions and to one vote at all meetings dthatders for each whole unit held.

The Fund units were redeemable at any time atptieroof the holder at the lesser of 90% of the
weighted average price of the Fund unit duringl#se ten trading days of the units on an open
market and the closing market price on the redemptiate. All redemptions were subject to a
maximum of $50,000 in cash redemptions by the Horahy particular month. Redemptions in
excess of this amount would have been paid by Waydistributionin specieof the assets of the
Fund.

The change in share capital and fund units waselks\s:

Supremex Income Funu Supremex Inc
Number of
Number Fund common Share
of units units shares capital
$ $
Balance, as of December 31, 2 29,297,76 282,798,32 — —
Conversion into a corporatic
[note 1] (29,297,767) (282,798,322) 29,297,767 10,000,000
Balance, as of December 31, 2 — — 29,297,76 10,000,00
Purchase of share capital-
cancellation — — (336,900) (114,992)
Balance, as of December 31, 20 — —  28,960,86 9,885,00!

On January 1, 2011, all the outstanding units effind were exchanged for common shares of
Supremex on a one-for-one basis [see note 1].
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15. SHARE CAPITAL / FUND UNITS [Cont'd]

Pursuant to the normal course issuer bid, whictabbem December 5, 2011, the Company could
have purchased for cancellation up to 1,500,000ncomshares until December 4, 2012. During
the twelve month period ended December 31, 201 ,Gbmpany purchased for cancellation
336,900 common shares at a price ranging from $i00$1.62 per common share and thus
completed the normal course issuer bid. The exaed® cost of the common shares over their
average book value of $315,729 was accounted fareduction of contributed surplus.

16. DIVIDENDS

Dividends declared from January 1, 2012 to DecerBheR012 were as follows:

Per share Dividend
Declaration date Record date Payment date $ $
February 15, 20! February 29, 201  March 15, 201 0.0z 878,93:
May 7, 201. May 31, 201 June 15, 201 0.0z 878,93
July 31, 201 August 31, 201 September 17, 20 0.0z 878,21(
November 8, 201 November 30, 2(2 December 17, 20: 0.0z 869,87t
Total 3,505,952
Dividends declared from January 1, 2011 to DecerBheR011 were as follows:
Per share Dividend
Declaration date Record date Payment date $ $
Marck 18, 201: March 31, 201 April 15, 201: 0.0z 878,93:
June 17, 201 June 30, 201 July 15, 201 0.0z 878,93
November 8, 201 November 30, 201 December 15, 20: 0.0z 878,93:
Total 2,636,799
17. OPERATING, SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPE NSES
2012 2011
$ $
Wages and salari 33,513,47 35,870,92
Social security cos 4,999,02. 5,424,34.
Pension costs [see note 2,337,60! 2,541,301
Pos-employment benefits other than pensions [see i 27,20( 33,60(
Sharebased program expen (2,048 18,25]
Employee benefits expen: 40,875,25 43,888,41
Raw materials and other purche 50,832,90 53,728,40
Othel 15,076,221 16,737,30
106,784,36 114,354,13
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18. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES
Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into operating leases yrfainbuildings.
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancelapkrating leases are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

201z 2011

$ $

Within one yee 1,719,418 1,682,75!
After one yeabut not more than five ye: 4,827,585 4,418,411
More than five yea 830,096 1,513,80'

7,377,099 7,614,98

Legal claim

In the normal course of its operations, the Comgargxposed to various claims, disputes and
legal proceedings. These disputes may involve nomsemuncertainties and the outcome of

individual cases is unpredictable. According to agement, these disputes should not have a
significant negative impact on the Company’s finahposition.

Guarantees

In the normal course of business, the Company hesexl into agreements that contain features
which meet the definition of a guarantee. Theseeaments may require the Company to

compensate counterparties for costs and lossesrécas a result of various events including

breaches of representations and warranties, loss @dmages to property, claims that may arise
while providing services, and environmental liglek. These agreements provide for

indemnification and guarantees to counterpartidelbmsvs:

Operating leases

The Company has general indemnity clauses in mdrits aeal estate leases whereby it, as
lessee, indemnifies the lessor against liabilitedated to the use of leased property. These leases
mature at various dates through September 2019n&hee of the agreements varies based on
individual contracts and this prevents the Comgaom estimating the total potential amount it
would have to pay to lessors, if any. Historicalyge Company has not made any significant
payments under such agreements, has insuranceagevdor certain of the obligations
undertaken, and, as December 31, 2012, has notdest@ny liability associated with these
indemnifications.
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

20.

Compensation of key management personnel of Suprenas follows:

201z 2011

$ $

Shor-term employee benef 1,645,459 1,933,24!
Pos-employment benefit 77,40¢ 73,21¢
Share-based payment transacti (2,048) 18,25’
1,720,820 2,024,72.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amaewetsgnized as an expense related to key
management personnel during the reporting period.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynbas, in the normal course of business,
received services in an amount of $117,891 [20%34,674] from a major shareholder, Clarke
Inc., and its subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities in the statemehfmancial position were as follows:

December 31, 2012 Assets
at fair value Other
Loans and through financial
receivables earnings  Derivatives liabilities Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cash — 5,093,876 — — 5,093,876
Accounts receivable 15,071,817 — — — 15,071,817
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities — — — (18,157,58¢ (18,157,58¢
Provisions — — — (426,311) (426,311)
Secured credit facilities — — — (50,000,000)  (50,000,000)
Derivative financial liability — — (1,251,154) — (1,251,154)
Total 15,071,81 5,093,87! (1,251,154 (68,583,90C (49,669,361
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Cont'd]

December 31, 2011 Assets
at fair value Other
Loans and through financial
receivables earnings  Derivatives liabilities Total
$ $ $ $ $
Cash — 2,606,332 — — 2,606,332
Accounts receivable 18,740,499 — — — 18,740,499
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities — — — (19,990,28( (19,990,28C
Provisions — — — (656,567) (656,567)
Secured credit facilities — — — (55,000,000) (55,000,000)
Derivative financial liability — — (1,776,293) — (1,776,293)
Total 18,740,499 2,606,332 (1,776,293) (75,646,847) (56,076,309)
Fair values

The carrying value of financial assets designatedaah and accounts receivable and of financial
liabilities designated as accounts payable anduadclhiabilities, and provisions approximates
their fair value since they are expected to bazedlor settled in the short term.

The carrying amount of secured credit facilitiepragimates its fair value given its nature and
floating interest rate.

The fair value of interest rate swap is measuréunlgus generally accepted valuation technique,
that is, the discounted value of the differenceveen the value of the swap based on variable
interest rates (estimated using the yield curveafticipated interest rates) and the value of the
swap based on the swap’s fixed interest rate. Qbmpany's credit risk is also taken into
consideration in determining fair value.

For the interest rate swap, the Company categothrdair value measurement in Level 2, as it
is primarily derived from observable market inptitt is, interest rates.

Management of risks arising from financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company j@sed to a range of financial risks, which
include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risko limit the effects of these risks on revenues,
expenses and cash flows, the Company can avaif itdevarious derivative financial
instruments. The Company’'s management is respenfibldetermining the acceptable level of
risk and uses derivative financial instruments otdymanage existing or anticipated risks,
commitments or obligations based on past experience
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and accounts recedgalbh order to minimize the credit exposure,

the Company'’s cash is placed with Canadian Schedbémnks.

Credit risk stems primarily from the potential iilédlp of clients to discharge their obligations.
Accounts receivable credit risk is mitigated thriougstablished monitoring activities, lack of
customer concentration and the Company’s diversifigstomer base. Historically, the Company
has never made any significant write-off of acceumiceivable. As at December 31, 2012 and
2011, total trade accounts receivable over 90 ¢m® due amounted to less than 5% (see

note 5). The Company does not hold collateral esrig.

Liquidity risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of being untebleonour its financial commitments within
the deadlines set out under the terms of such comenis and at a reasonable price. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adggqucash balances and by appropriately
using the Company'’s revolving credit facility. TR®mpany continuously reviews both actual
and forecasted cash flows to ensure that it haquade credit facility capacity. The Company
continuously reviews its exposure to interest flaigtuations and has decided at this time to enter

into a derivatives contract [see note 13].

The table below sets forth the contractual undistexli cash flows of the non-derivative and
derivative financial liabilities by maturity based the remaining period from December 31, to

the contractual maturity date.

December 31, 2012 Less than
3 months 1to 5 years Total
$ $ $
Accounts payable al
accrued liabilities 18,157,589 — 18,157,589
Provision: 426,31 — 426,31:
Secured credit facilitie 1,250,001 45,000,00 50,000,00
Interest on secured cre:
facilities 520,864 3,317,127 5,301,961
Derivative financial liabiliy 85,50( 358,43! 700,43!
20,440,264 48,675,562 74,586,296
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December 31, 2011 Less than 3to 12
3 months months  1to 5 years Total
$ $ $ $
Accounts payable al
accrued liabilities 19,990,280 — — 19,990,280
Provision: 656,56 — — 656,56
Secured credit facilitie 1,250,001 3,750,00i 50,000,00 55,000,00
Interest on secured cre:
facilities 572,487 1,840,633 5,272,358 7,685,478
Derivative financial liabiliy 104,25( 312,75( 696,00!( 1,113,00!

22,573,584 5,903,383 55,968,358 84,445,325

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market ggidue to foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the value of the Company’s finmhénstruments. The objective of market and
risk management is to mitigate and control expasusithin acceptable parameters while
optimizing the return on risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate fluctuatioainly on its secured credit facilities. The
Company manages interest rate exposure by maimtgiai balanced portfolio of fixed and

variable loans and borrowings. Furthermore, interat® fluctuations could have an impact on
interest expense on its revolving and term creatitlifies and on income the Company derives
from cash. The Company invests its cash in highlyid investment instruments to safeguard its
capital while generating a reasonable return.

On December 31, 2012, a 25 basis-point rise oiirfaliterest rates, assuming all other variables
remained unchanged, would have resulted, respctinea $48,697 increase or decrease in the
Company'’s net loss for the year ended Decembe2@®I2 [2011 - $64,690].

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in US exghamates because a portion of its activities
are conducted in the United States and a portioilsgburchases and capital expenditures are
made in US dollars. The Company continuously resié& exposure to fluctuations in the US

exchange rate and has decided at this time nobtr énto derivatives as the exposure is not
significant.

As at December 31, 2012, net financial liabilitie§ the Company in Canadian dollars,
denominated in US dollars, totalled $2,690,690 [20%$2,518,712].
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21.

On December 31, 2012, a 5% rise or fall in the @amadollar against the US dollar, assuming
all other variables remained unchanged, would heselted, respectively, in a $134,535 increase
or decrease in the Company’s net loss for the §ear ended [2011 - $125,936], whereas other
comprehensive loss would have remained unchangadettr, the above change in net earnings
may have been offset by adjustments in Canadiaringrirequired to remain competitive with
imports from the United States, mainly in commogitgducts.

Capital management

The Company’s capital consists of equity and setaredit facilities. The Company maintains a
capital level that enables it to meet several dhjes:

» Assure the longevity of its capital to support éoméd operations;

» Satisfy certain financial covenants under the sstaredit facilities;

» Preserve its financial flexibility to benefit fropotential opportunities as they arise; and
e Sustain growth in share value.

The Company continually assesses the adequacy o#jftital structure and capacity and makes
adjustments in view of the Company’s strategy, eagin conditions and the risk characteristics
of the business to achieve the above objectives.Gdmpany also monitors its capital to ensure
full adherence to the “secured credit facilitiesfEBA” and “fixed charge covenant” ratios as
defined in the credit facilities agreement.

The Company’s capital structure is composed oftggaecured credit facilities, less cash. The
capital structure of continuing operations is dbfes:

December 31 December 31

2012 2011
$ $
Secured credit faciliti¢ 50,000,00 55,000,00
Cast (5,093,87¢€ (2,606,332
Net deb 44,906,12 52,393,66
Equity 37,906,90 64,667,27

The Company is not subject to any externally imdosapital requirements other than certain
restrictions under the terms of its secured créatitlities, which relate mainly to permitted
acquisitions.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company currently operates in one reportingnsed. the manufacturing and sale of
envelopes. The Company’s non-current assets antm$94,919,075 in Canada and $846,307
in the United States as at December 31, 2012 [8I8((57 and $1,002,270, respectively, as at
December 31, 2011]. The Company’'s revenue amouibe&120,318,758 in Canada and
$11,555,873 in the United States for the year erdedember 31, 2012 based on customer
location [2011 - $132,290,658 in Canada and $1158(1in the United States, respectively].
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22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 20, 2013, the Board of Directors hadaded a quarterly dividend of $0.03 per
common share, payable on March 15, 2013 to shatetsobf record at the close of business on
March 4, 2013.

As permitted by the credit agreement, the Compatuested on February 21, 2013 the
cancellation of the $25 million acquisition/capitaixpenditures credit facility effective
February 22, 2013. No amount was drawn on thisitcfadllity at that date.
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